OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP

FORM 10-K405

(Annual Report (Regulation S-K, item 405))

Filed 3/26/1999 For Period Ending 12/31/1998

Address 1 WEST MELLEN ST
HAMPTON, Virginia 23663
Telephone 757-728-1247
CIK 0000740971
Industry Regional Banks
Sector Financial
Fiscal Year 12/31
e oo ecgaroning com EDGAR Customer Senice. 303.852-6665

Corporate Sales: 212-457-8200



U. S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

[X] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(thhe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998

[ ] Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 ord) % the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (no fee required)
For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 0-12896

OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION

(Name of issuer in its charter)

Virginia 5 4-1265373
(State or other jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
of incorporation or organization)

1 West Mellen Street, Hampton, Va. 23663
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(757) 722-7451
(Issuer's telephone number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Exchange Act:
None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢tie Exchange Act:
Common Stock ($5.00 par value)
(Title of class)

Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports megfuito be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Eaghe Act during the past 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was requadile such reports), and (2) has been subgestith filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes X No

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent &lar response to Item 405 of Regulation S-B coetin this form, and no disclosure will be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

As of March 16, 1999 there were 2,576,244 share®wimon stock outstanding and the aggregate meaket of common stock of Old Po
Financial Corporation held by nonaffiliates was rpgmately $57,855,999 based upon the weightedaaeeprice per share for the last 5
trading days.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
NONE



OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Form 10-K

INDEX

Iltem 1. Description of Business...................
General.......eeveieeiiiiiieeecceeis
Statistical Information

Iltem 2. Description of Property...................

Item 3. Legal ProceedingsS............ccoevvenne

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securit
PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Common Equity And Related Stock
Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data...................

Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fina
Condition and Results of Operations.........

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accounta
and Financial Disclosure Accounting.......

PART L. oo
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Re
Iltem 11. Executive Compensation....................

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial O
Management...........cccceveeveeeerennnnns

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transact
PART IV. (i

Iltem 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules an
onNFOrm 8.......coovvviiiiiiiiiiiieeees




PART |
Item 1. Description of Business
General

Old Point Financial Corporation (the "Company") vigsorporated under the laws of Virginia on Febyub®, 1984, for the purpose of
acquiring all the outstanding common stock of The Point National Bank of Phoebus (the "Bank")cannection with the reorganization of
the Bank into a one bank holding company structitéhe annual meeting of the stockholders on M&th1984, the proposed
reorganization was approved by the requisite stolckdn vote. At the effective date of the reorgati@aon October 1, 1984, the Bank mert
into a newly formed national bank as a wholly owsatsidiary of the Company, with each outstandivaye of common stock of the Bank
being converted into five shares of common stocthefCompany.

The Company has no other subsidiaries and doesngeige in any activities other than acting as dihglcompany for the common stock of
the Bank. The principal business of the Compamyisiucted through the Bank, which continues to aohis business in substantially the
same manner and from the same offices as it hagl ldeiore the effective date of the reorganizafidre Bank, therefore, accounts for
substantially all of the consolidated assets amdmaes of the Company.

The Bank is a national banking association fouridek®22. The Bank has thirteen offices 1in theesibf Hampton and Newport News, and
in James City and York County, Virginia, and prasd full range of banking and related financiavises, including checking, savings,
certificates of deposit, and other depository smwj commercial, industrial, residential real estatd consumer loan services, safekeeping
services and trust and estate services.

As of December 31, 1998, the Company had ass&40zf.1 million, loans of $235.9 million, deposifs$343.4 million, and stockholders'
equity of $40.0 million. At year end, the Compamyglahe Bank had a total of 223 employees, 34 ofrvh@re part-time.

Based on 1990 census figures, the population oB#mk's trade area, which includes Hampton, Newdews, Williamsburg, and James C
and York County was approximately 394,000. Thisareconomy is heavily influenced by the two largesployers; military installations
and shipbuilding and ship repair. These industiresimpacted by reductions in defense spendingparsbnnel. Some of our customers are
either employed at the various military installasor at the shipyard, or they derive some orfateir business from these two major
employers. There are numerous military installagionthe area including Fort Monroe, Langley Air¢é®Base, and Fort Eustis. The
consolidation of the Tactical Air Command and theategic Air Command into the Air Combat Commandatgley has somewhat mitiga
the reduction in military employment in the areheTargest private employer on the Peninsula isNg&port News Shipbuilding and
Drydock Company, which currently employees appratity 16,000 2people.

The banking industry is highly competitive in tharHpton/Newport News/Williamsburg area. There am@gmately twelve commercial
and savings banks actively engaged in busines®iarea in which the Bank operates, including ssjomstatewide banking organizations.

The Bank encounters competition for deposits andddrom banks, savings and loan associations@ait anions in the communities in
which it operates. In addition, the Bank must cotager deposits in some instances with the monesketanutual funds which are marketed
nationally.

The Bank is subject to regulation and examinatipthie Office of the Comptroller of the Currencye thederal Reserve Board (the "Board"),
and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation"EpgC").



As a bank holding company within the meaning of Bk Holding Company Act of 1956, the Companyuilsjsct to the ongoing regulation,
supervision, and examination by the Federal Red®oaed (the "Board"). The Company is required ke fiith the Board periodic and annual
reports and other information concerning its ownibess operations and those of its subsidiariesddiition, prior Board approval must be
obtained before the Company can acquire (i) owngishcontrol of any voting shares of another bdnéfter such acquisition, it would
control more than 5% of such shares, or (ii) abwiostantially all of the assets of another bankerge or consolidate with another bank
holding company. A bank holding company is prol@ditinder the Bank Holding Company Act, with limigcteptions, from engaging in
activities other than those of banking or of manggir controlling banks or furnishing servicest®subsidiaries.

Statistical Information

The following statistical information is furnish@drsuant to the requirements of Guide 3 (Statisbésclosure by Bank Holding Companies)
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933.

I. Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Sharetiets' Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Diffaegnt

The following table presents the distribution a$ets, liabilities, and shareholders' equity by megdegories with related average yields/re
In these balance sheets, nonaccrual loans araledtln the daily average loans outstanding. THewahg table sets forth a summary of
changes in interest earned and paid attributabtdanges in volume and changes in yields/rates.
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TABLE |

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS, NET INTEREST INCOME* AND RATES*

For the years ended December 31,
Dollars in thousands

ASSETS
Loans $226,
Investment securities:
Taxable 87,
Tax-exempt 34,
Total investment securities 121,
Federal funds sold 10,
Total earning assets 358,
Reserve for loan losses 2,

Cash and due from banks 8,
Bank premises and equipment 11,
Other assets 3,

Total assets $380,

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Time and savings deposits:
Interest-bearing transaction accounts $ 15,

Money market deposit accounts 71,

Savings accounts 26,

Certificates of deposit,

$100,000 or more 26,

Other certificates of deposit 121,

Total time and savings deposits 261,

Federal funds purchased and securities

sold under agreement to repurchase 21,
Other short term borrowings 1,

Total interest bearing liabilities 284,
Demand deposits 56,
Other liabilities 1,

Total liabilities 342,
Stockholders' equity 38,

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $380,

Net interest incomel/yield

Total deposits $317,

* Computed on a fully taxable equivalent basis usin

1998 1997
Average Average
Interest Rates Interest Rates

ge Income/ Earned/ Average Income/ Earned

ce Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid

908 $20,255 8.93% $210,934 $19,288 9.14%

112 5,285 6.07% 72,064 4,473 6.21%
317 2,665 7.77% 24,129 1,954 8.10%

429 7,950 6.55% 96,193 6,427 6.68%
305 572 5.55% 4,981 276 5.54%

642 28,777 8.02% 312,108 25,991 8.33%

628) (2,366)
014 309,742
933 8,753
931 10,036
878 3,624
756 $332,155

929 $346 2.17% $24,376 $ 537 2.20%
199 $2,326 3.27% 49,302 1,528 3.10%
211 718 2.74% 25,822 708 2.74%

084 1,462 5.60% 19,122 1,135 5.94%
676 6,740 5.54% 108,665 5,813 5.35%

099 11,592 4.44% 227,287 9,721 4.28%

713 1,013 4.67% 17,767 861 4.85%
776 96 5.41% 1,857 99 5.33%

588 12,701 4.46% 246,911 10,681 4.33%

001 49,432
641 1,394
230 297,737
526 34,418
756 $332,155
$16,076 4.48% $15,310 4.91%
100 $276,719

g a 34% rate

Average

Interest Rates
Average Income/ Earned/
Balance Expense Paid

$192,940 $17,681 9.16%

78,734 4,736 6.02%
15,194 1,292 8.50%
93,928 6,028 6.42%
3981 208 5.22%

290,849 23917 8.22%
(2,240)

$50,041 $1,210 2.42%
21,212 789 3.72%
26,354 722 2.74%

17,026 940 5.52%
103,029 5,642 5.48%

217,662 9,303 4.27%

14,688 706 4.81%
1,599 84 5.25%

233,949 10,093 4.31%



The following table sets forth a summary of changes in interest earned and

paid attributable to changes in volume and changes in yields/rates.
TABL Ell
ANAL YSIS OF CHANGE IN NET INTEREST INCOME *
Year 1998 over 1997 Year 1997 over 1996 Y ear 1996 over 1995
Due to chan gein: Due to change in: D ue to change in:
Net Net Net
Average Av erage Increase Average Average Increase A verage Average Increase
Dollars in Thousands Volume Ra te  (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)V olume Rate (Decrease)

INCOME FROM EARNING ASSETS

Loans $1,461 $ (494) $ 967 $ 1649 $ (42) $ 1,607 $ 1,105 $ $355 $ 1,460
Investment Securities:
Taxable 934 (122) 812  (401) 138  (263) 19 27 46
Tax-exempt 825 (114) 711 760 (98) 662 652 (119) 533
Total investment securities 1,759 (236) 1,523 359 40 399 671  (92) 579
Federal funds sold 295 1 296 52 16 68 39 @7 (56)
3,515 (729) 2,786 2,060 14 2,074 1,737 246 1,983
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest bearing transaction accounts  (186) (5) (191) (621) (52) (673) 19 (112) (93)
Money market deposit accounts 679 119 798 1,045 (306) 739 73 (49) 24
Savings accounts 11 1) 10 (15) 1 (14) @ Q) (8)
Certificate of deposits, $100,000
or more 413 (86) 327 116 79 195 178 2 180
Other certificates of deposit 696 231 927 309 (138) 171 304 48 352
Total time and savings deposits 1,613 258 1,871 834 (416) 418 567 (112) 455
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreement to repurchase 191 (39) 152 148 7 155 176 (43) 133
Other short-term borrowings 4) 1 3) 14 1 15 22) 4 (26)
Total expense for interest bearing
liabilities 1,800 220 2,020 996  (408) 588 721 (159) 562
Change in Net Interest Income $1,714 $ (948) $ 766 $ 1,064 $ 422 $ 1,486 $ 1,016 $ 405 $ 1,421
* Computed on a fully taxable equvilent basis u sing a 34% rate.



Interest Sensitivity

The following table reflects the earlier of the mat
and liabilities as of Decmber 31, 1998.

As of December 31, 1998
Dollars in thousands

Uses of funds

Federal funds sold
Taxable investments
Tax-exempt investments

Total investments

Loans:
Commercial
Tax-exempt
Installment
Real estate
Other

Total loans

Total earning assets

Sources of funds

Interest checking deposits

Money market deposit accounts

Regular savings accounts

Certificates of deposit
$100,000 or more

Other time deposits

Federal funds purchased and
securities sold under
agreements to repurchase

Other borrowed money

Total interest bearing liabilities

Rate sensitivity GAP

Cumulative GAP

Within
3 Month

6,57
9,42

15,99

18,92
2,91
21,64
81
45,13

61,12

4,38
90,95
26,34
5,93
32,02
19,12
33

179,11

(117,98

(117,98

urity or repricing data for various assets

TABLE llI
INTEREST SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

4-12 1-5 Over 5

s Months Years Years Tot al
8 - - - 6, 578
1 3,544 51,916 22,849 87, 730
0 0 1,678 48,079 49, 757
9 3,544 53,594 70,928 144, 065
7 2,946 38,567 3,883 64, 323
5 37 270 270 1, 402
8 3,392 49,254 3,053 58, 617
1 7,778 59,739 21,546 110, 704
9 - 0 0 819
0 14,153 147,830 28,752 235, 865
9 17,697 201,424 99,680 379, 930
7 - - - 4, 387
4 - - - 90, 954
1 - - - 26, 341
9 11,814 10,452 - 28, 205

50,726 45,435 - 128, 190
8 - - - 19, 128
3 - 15 - 348
1 62,540 55,902 0 297, 553
2) (44,843) 145,522 99,680 82, 377

2) (162,825) (17,303) 82,377



The Company was liability sensitive as of Decen8ier1i998. There were $118.0 million more in ligkes than assets subject to repricing
within three months. This generally indicates thaitinterest income should improve if interestsd#dl since liabilities will reprice faster th
assets. It should be noted, however, that saviagedits; which consist of interest bearing transastaccounts, money market accounts, and
savings accounts; are less interest sensitivedtiar market driven deposits. In a rising rate mmment these deposit rates have historically
lagged behind the changes in earning asset rhtesmitigating somewhat the impact from the lidpigiensitivity position.

Il. Investment Portfolio

Note 2 of the Notes to Financial Statements found item 8. Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data of this Repdfbom 10K presents the book and market value afstmaent securities on the dates
indicated.

The following table shows, by type and maturitye ook value and weighted average yields of investreecurities at December 31, 1998.

TABLE IV
INVESTMENT SECURITY MATURITIES & YIELDS
U.S.Govt/A gency State/Municipal Total
Book Weighted Book Weighted = Book Weighted
Value Average Value Average Value Average
Dollars in Thousands Yield Yield Yield
December 31, 1998
Maturities:
Within 1 year $ 7,526 543% $ 0 0.00% $ 7,526 5.43%
After 1 year, but within 5 years 51,445 6.20% 1,600 9.60% 53,045 6.30%
After 5 years, but within 10 years 23,084 6.14% 19,354 8.24% 42,438 7.10%
After 10 years 0 0.00% 27,641 791% 27,641 7.91%
TOTAL $82,055 6.11%  $48,595 8.10% $130,650 6.85%
December 31, 1997 $62,126 6.33%  $27,843 8.18% $89,969 6.90%
December 31, 1996 $69,528 6.06%  $20,015 8.17% $89,541 6.53%

Yields are calculated on a fully tax equivalentibasing a 34% rate.

At December 31, 1998, the book value of other ntafie equity securities with no stated maturitaled $5.58 million with an weighted
average yield of 5.45%. These securities consistes adjustable rate mortgage fund of $4.4 miljaiding 5.01%, Federal Home Loan
Bank stock of $1.0 million yielding 7.50%, FedeRaserve stock of $85 thousand yielding 6.00% ahdratecurities of $50 thousand. The

book value of other marketable securities with tadesi maturity totaled $5.48 million, yielding 6%3and $5.44 million, yielding 5.89%; at
December 31, 1997, and 1996 respectively.



Ill. Loan Portfolio

The following table shows a breakdown of total leay type at December 31 for years 1994 througi®:199

TAB
LO

As of December 31, 1998 1997 1
Dollars in thousands

Commercial and other

$65,143 $45,059 $

Real Estate Construction 5,418 3,836

Real Estate Mortgage

Tax Exempt

105,285 104,141 1
1,401 2,093

Installment Loans to

Individuals

Total

58,618 66,615

$235,865 $221,744 $1

LEV
ANS

996 1995 1994

28,944 $20,636 $ 17,806
5,213 4,093 1,991
04,230 109,469 105,703
2,464 3,003 4,754

57,733 52,154 43,487

98,584 $189,355 $173,741

Based on Standard Industry Code, there are noaategf loans which exceed 10% of total loans iothan the categories disclosed in the

preceding table.

The maturity distribution and rate sensitivity @frain categories of the Bank's loan portfolio acBmber 31, 1998 is presented below:

TABL
MATURITY SCHEDUL

December 31, 1998

One year On

Dollars in thousands or less fi
Commercial and other $19,680 $4
Real estate construction 5,010

Total $24,690 $4
Loans maturing after

one year with:
Fixed interest rate $3

Variable interest rate

E VI
E OF SELECTED LOANS

e through  Over five

ve years years Total
1,441 $4,022 $65,143
408 0 5,418

1,849 $4,022 70,561

7,115 $3,782 $40,897
4,734 $240 $4,974



The following table presents information concerniing aggregate amount of nonaccrual, past dueestidictured loans as of December 31
for the years 1994 through 1998.

TABLE VII

NONACCRUAL, PAST DUE AND RESTRU CTURED LOANS
As of December 31, 1998 199 7 1996 1995 1994
Dollars in thousands
Nonaccrual loans $253 $66 0 $1,550 $2,447 $2,955
Accruing loans past due
90 days or more 641 45 5 1,342 248 837
Restructured loans none non e none none none

Interest income which would have been
recorded under original loan terms 52 20 5 163 350 470

Interest income recorded during
the period 123 48 5 222 131 188

Loans are placed in nonaccrual status if prinajpahterest has been in default for a period ofl8@s or more unless the obligation is both
well secured and in the process of collection. Atde "well secured" if it is secured (i) by cobaal in the form of liens on or pledges of real
or personal property, including securities, thateha realizable value sufficient to discharge tlktdn full or (ii) by the guaranty of a
financially responsible party. A debt is "in theopess of collection” if collection of the debt i®peeding in due course either through legal
action, including judgment enforcement proceduoesin appropriate circumstances, through collecgfforts not involving legal action
which are reasonably expected to result in repaywiethe debt or in its restoration to a curreatiss.

Potential problem loans consist of loans that, beeaf potential credit problems of the borrowbesje caused management to have serious
doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to comyth the loan repayment terms. At December 3B81€uch problem loans, not included in
Table VII, amounted to approximately $1.2 millidrhe potential problem loans included one relatigrsim excess of $500 thousand. The
potential problem loans are generally secured bigleatial and commercial real estate with appraisddes exceeding the principal balance
of the loan.

IV. Summary of Loan Loss Experience

The determination of the balance of the Allowarmelfoan Losses is based upon a review and analf/#iie loan portfolio and reflects an
amount which, in management's judgment, is adedagisvide for possible future losses. Manageragatiiew includes monthly analysis
past due and nonaccrual loans and detailed pefiogiicby loan analyses.

The principal factors considered by managemeneterdhining the adequacy of the allowance are tbestirand composition of the loan
portfolio, historical loss experience, the levehohperforming loans, economic conditions, the @aond adequacy of collateral, and the
current level of the allowance.



TA

ANALYSIS OF THE AL
For the year ended December 31, 1998
Dollars in thousands
Balance at beginning of period $ 2,671
Charge Offs:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 296
Real estate construction 0
Real estate mortgage 87
Installment Loans to individuals 564
Total charge offs 947
Recoveries:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 139
Real estate construction 0
Real estate mortgage 25
Installment Loans to individuals 317
Total recoveries 481
Net charge offs 466
Additions charged to operations 650
Balance at end of period $ 2,855

Selected loan loss statistics

Loans (net of unearned income):

End of period $235,865
Daily average $226,908

Net charge offs to average total loans  0.21%
Provision for loan losses to average

total loans 0.29%
Provision for loan losses to net

charge offs 139.48%
Allowance for loan losses to period

end loans 1.21%
Earnings to loan loss coverage* 14.64

* Income before taxes plus provision for loan losse

BLE VI

The following table shows an analysis of the Allowa for Loan Losses for the years 1994 through 1998

LOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

1997

1996

1995 1994

$ 2,330 $ 2,251 $ 2,647 $ 2,692

84 98 1,210 147
0 0 0 0
67 2 135 316
717 825 375 148
868 925 1,720 611
239 87 296 431
0 0 0 0
1 14 44 19
369 303 159 91
609 404 499 541
259 521 1,221 70
600 600 825 25

$ 2,671 $ 2,330 $ 2,251 $ 2,647

$221,744 $198,584 $189,355 $173,741
$210,934 $192,940 $180,638 $160,204

0.12%

0.28%

231.66%

1.20%
23.67

0.27%

0.31%

0.68%  0.04%

0.46%  0.02%

115.16% 67.57%

1.17%
10.28

1.19% 1.51%

3.25 56.21

s, divided by net charge-offs.



The following table shows the amount of the Allowarfor Loan Losses allocated to each category eéidber 31 for the years 1994 through
1998.

TABLE IX
ALLOC ATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
As of December 31,
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Percent Per cent Percent Percent Percent

of loans of loans of loans of loans of loans

in Each in Each in Each in Each in Each

Category to Cat egory to Category to  Category to Category to

Amount Total Loans  Amount Tot al Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loan s Amount Total Loans

Commercial and other $ 656 27.92% $ 575 21.26% $ 835 15.85% $ 843 12.57% $1,417 12.98%
Real Estate
Construction 17 2.30% 14 1.73% 23 2.62% 18 2.18% 20 1.15%
Real Estate Mortgage 203 44.64% 240 46.97% 322 52.49% 370 58.21% 739 60.84%
Consumer 370 25.14% 412 30.04% 391 29.04% 247 27.04% 135 25.03%
Unallocated 1,609 0 1,430 0 759 0 773 0 381 0
Total $2,855 100.00% $2,671 1 00.00% $2,330 100.00%  $2,251 100.00% $2,647 100.00%
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V. Deposits

The following table shows the average balancesaapdage rates paid on deposits for the years dddeember 31, 1996, 1997, and 1998.

TABLE X

DEPOSITS
For the year ended December 31, 1998 1997 1996

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Dollars in thousands Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Interest bearing transaction

accounts $15929 2.17% $24,376 2.20% $ 50,041 2.42%
Money market deposit accounts 71,199 3.27% 49,302 3.10% 21,212 3.72%
Savings accounts 26,211 2.74% 25,822 2.74% 26,354 2.74%
Certificate of deposit, $100,000 26,084 5.60% 19,122 5.94% 17,026 5.52%
Other certificate of deposit 121,676 5.54% 108,665 5.35% 103,029 5.48%
Total interest bearing deposits 261,099 4.44% 227,287 4.28% 217,662 4.27%
Non-interest bearing demand
deposits 56,001 49,432 46,198
Total deposits $317,100 $276,719 $263,860

10



The following table shows certificates of deposiaimounts of $100,000 or more as of December 38,1997, and 1996 by time remaining
until maturity.

TABLE XI
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT $100,000 & MORE

Dollars in thousands 1998 1997 1996

Maturing in

3 months or less $3592 $5449 $ 3,089

3 through 6 months 6,353 3,087 3,550

6 through 12 months 7,345 5,843 3,774

over 12 months 10,915 9,467 7,013
$28,205  $23,84 $1 7,426

VI. Return on Equity and Assets

The return on average shareholders' equity andsasise dividend pay out ratio, and the averagétytpuaverage assets ratio for the past
three years are presented below.

1998 1997 1 996
Return on average assets 1.22% 1.23% 1 .10%
Return on average equity 12.03% 11.88% 10 .99%
Dividend payout ratio 26.62% 25.68% 25 .88%
Average equity to average assets 10.15% 10.36% 10 .01%

VII. Short Term Borrowings

The Bank periodically borrowed funds through fetlewads from its correspondent banks, through theaf a demand note to the United
States Treasury (Treasury Tax and Loan Depositg)tlrough securities sold under agreements tachpse. The borrowings matured daily
and were based on daily cash flow requirements bbnewed amounts (in thousands) and their cormedipg rates during 1998, 1997, and
1996 are presented in the following table.
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TABLE Xl
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Dollars in thousands

1998
Balance Rate B

Balance at December 31,
Federal funds purchased $
Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase

U. S. treasury demand notes

0

$

19,128 4.25%

and other borrowed money 348 4.89%
Total $1-9476 - $

Average daily

balance outstanding:

Federal funds purchased $ 13 586% $

Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase
U. S. treasury demand notes
and other borrowed money

21,700 4.66%

1,776 5.35%

Total $23,489 4.72% $

The maximum amount outstanding

at any month end:

Federal funds purchased $ O $
Securities sold under

agreement to repurchase $26,094 $
U. S. treasury demand notes

and other borrowed money $4,024 $

12

1997 1996
alance Rate Balance Rate

0 $2,000 6.28%

20,165 4.81% 15,135 4.58%

4,025 5.27% 2,301 5.03%

24,190

$19,436

271 554% $ 575 5.23%

17,496 4.84% 14,413 4.76%

1,857 5.33%

1,599 5.23%

19,624 4.89% $16,587 4.85%

0 $ 2,700
23,121 $16,046
4,033 $ 4,052



Item 2. Description of Property

The Bank owns the Main Office, three office builgsd, and seven branches5. All of the above pragseatie owned directly and free of any
encumbrances. The land at the Fort Monroe branigased by the Bank under an agreement expiri@ctober 2011. The remaining three
branches are 6leased from unrelated parties uadse$ with renewal options which expire anywhemn ft0-15 years. The Company is
building a branch in Norge VA and expects to benopethe third quarter of 1999.

For more information concerning the commitmentsasralirrent leasing agreements, see Note 10. Leasen@ments of the Notes to
Financial Statements found in Item 8. Financiate$teents and Supplementary Data of this Report omA®K. Additional information on
Other Real Estate Owned can be found in Note GeiCRieal Estate Owned of the Notes to Financiak8tants found in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data of this Repdfoom 10K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company is not a party to any material pentiggl proceedings before any court, administradiyency, or other tribunal.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityolders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgchiolders during the quarter ended December 33819
Part Il

Item 5. Market for Common Equity And Related Stocktolder Matters

Beginning in 1998 the common stock of Old Pointaficial Corporation was quoted on the OTC Bulletiai®l under the symbol "OPOF".
The approximate number of shareholders of recoaf 82cember 31, 1998 was 1,480. The range of &ighlow prices and dividends per
share of the Company's common stock for each quduténg 1998 and 1997 is presented in Part |. [fewf this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. Additional information related to stockholder ties can be found in Note 15. Regulatory Mattéthe Notes to Financial Statements
found in Item 8. Financial Statements and SuppleamgriData of this Report on Form 10K.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following table summarizes the Company's pearéorce for the past five years.
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Years Ended December 31,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Interest income...........cccccveeunenne. $
Interest expense..........ccceeeveeeenen.

Net interest income.......
Provision for loan loss

Net interest income after provision
fOr 0SS v,

Gains (losses) on sales of
investment securities...................
Noninterest income............cc.e.o...
Noninterest eXpenses...........c.........

Income before taxes......................
INncome taxes .......cccceeveeveeeeeennens

Net inCOMe.........cceeevveerreereennen. $
FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total aSSetS...vvvrereeriraienen $
Total deposits.........cccevcvveeeennnns

Total loans..............
Stockholders' equity...
Average asSetS...........cceeeeveennnnns
Average equity.......ccccoevereeeennns

PERTINENT RATIOS

Return on average assets.................
Return on average equity.................
Dividends paid as a percent of net income
Average equity as a percent of

average assSSets.......coocvevieennnnn.

PER SHARE DATA
BasiC EPS.......ccoeoeeiiiiiin,

Cash dividends declared..
Book value.........ccccveeevenienennnn.

GROWTH RATES

Year end assets.......ccccceeeeeeinnnns
Year end depositS..........ccceeveeennne
Year end loans.....
Year end equity...
Average asSetS...........cceeeeeveennnnns
Average equity..
Netincome.........cccccvvvvvveveenennn.

Cash dividends declared..................
Book value.........ccccvveeveeeenennnn.

TABLE XIlI
SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

(Dollars in Thousands except per share data)

27,805 $ 25,242 $ 23,377 $21,534 $19,234
12,700 10,681 10,093 9,531 7,625

15,105 14,561 13,284 12,003 11,609
650 600 600 825 25

14,455 13,961 12,684 11,178 11,584

0o (1) 2 9 407
4911 4275 4134 3836 3,755
13,193 12,704 12,066 11,884 11,837

6,173 5,531 4,754 3,139 3,909
1,537 1,441 1,309 797 1,136

4,636 $ 4,090 $ 3,445 $ 2,342 $ 2,773

404,118 $348,671 $316,345 $304,266 $277,680

343,413 287,100 263,519 256,535 235,599
235,865 221,744 198,584 189,355 174,881
40,013 36,332 32,400 30,328 26,222
380,756 332,155 313,012 291,174 278,398
38,526 34,418 31,333 29,022 26,694

1.22% 1.23% 1.10% 0.80% 1.00%
12.03% 11.88% 10.99% 8.07% 10.39%
26.62% 25.68% 25.88% 33.17% 25.03%

10.12% 10.36% 10.01% 9.97% 9.59%

$1.80 $1.60 $1.35 $0.92 $1.10
0.48 041 035 0.305 0.275
1554 1416 12.72 1191 10.37

15.90% 10.22% 3.97% 9.57% 3.33%
19.61% 8.95% 2.72% 8.89% 1.77%
6.37% 11.66% 4.87% 8.28% 8.08%
10.13% 12.14% 6.83% 15.66% 8.39%
14.63% 6.12% 7.50% 4.59% 3.53%
11.94% 9.85% 7.96% 8.72% 11.90%
13.35% 18.72% 47.10% -15.54% 59.55%
17.07% 17.14% 14.75% 10.91% 37.50%
9.74% 11.30% 6.83% 14.78% 6.54%
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Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fimezial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion is intended to assist ezadh understanding and evaluating the consolidagsults of operations and financial
condition of the Company. This discussion shoulddazel in conjunction with the financial statemearsg other financial information
contained elsewhere in this report. The analy$&sgits to identify trends and material changes Wwbitcurred during the period presented.

EARNINGS SUMMARY

Net income was $4.64 million, or $1.80 per shar&988 compared to $4.09 million, or $1.60 per sliaE997 and $3.45 million, or $1.
per share in 1996. Return on average assets w2%r21998, 1.23% in 1997 and 1.10% in 1996. Returaverage equity was 12.03% in
1998, 11.88% in 1997 and 10.99% in 1996. For tlst fdze years return on average assets has aveta@e¥ and return on average equity
has averaged 10.67%. Selected Financial Highlginsmarizes the Company's performance for the pesyéars.

NET INTEREST INCOME

The principal source of earnings for the Compameisinterest income. Net interest income is tlifedince between interest and fees
generated by earning assets and interest expeitstogand them. Net interest income, on a tax egjent basis, was $16.08 million in 1998,
up $766 thousand, or 5% from $15.30 million in 19&ch was up $1.49 million, or 11% from $13.82lrit in 1996. Net interest income is
affected by variations in interest rates and tHeme and mix of earning assets and interest-beéigbiities. The net interest yield decreased
to 4.48% in 1998 from 4.91% in 1997 which was unfr4.75% in 1996.

Tax equivalent interest income increased $2.79anillor 11%, in 1998. Average earning assets grg&v3B million, or 15%. Total average
loans increased $15.97 million, or 8%, while averayestment securities increased $25.24 millior2696. The yield on earning assets
decreased in 1998 by thirty-one basis points piilgndue to lower interest rates. The prime ratechitis a major influence on rates, declined
seventy-five basis points in 1998.

Interest expense increased $2.02 million or 19%9@8. Interest bearing liabilities increased 15%998. The cost of funding liabilities
increased thirteen basis points due to an incrieas®ney market accounts and certificates of dépasiying a higher interest rate. The bank
offered these attractively priced products to gaarket share in 1998.

PROVISION/ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Provision for loan losses is a charge against egsniecessary to maintain the allowance for loasds at a level consistent with
management's evaluation of the loan portfolio. phavision increased to $650 thousand in 1998 fré®0&housand in 1997 and 1996.

Loans charged off during 1998 totaled $947 thousamdpared to $868 thousand in 1997 and $925 thdusatf96, while recoveries
amounted to $481 thousand in 1998, $609 thousah@l9i and $404 thousand in 1996. During 1996 alpagtion of the loans charged off
were in the indirect dealer installment portfolidiese higher charge offs were due in large paahtmcrease in personal bankruptcies. As a
result of these losses the underwriting standarte wnaised for indirect dealer loans. The comparsitif installment loans has shifted from
60% in dealer loans in 1996 to 51% in 1997 to 469%998. Indirect dealer loans charged off net cbveries were reduced by $186
thousand, or 44%, in 1997 from 1996, and $132 thodsor 55%, in 1998 from 1997. In addition, thess a commercial loan charged off
due to bankruptcy as well as deficiencies on fasal real estate recorded during 1998.
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The Company's net loans charged off to yead-loans were 0.20% in 1998, 0.12% in 1997, aP@9%.in 1996. The allowance for loan los:
as a percentage of year-end loans, was 1.21% 8, 1980% in 1997, and 1.17% in 1996.

As of December 31, 1998, nonperforming assets %€8& thousand, down from $1.43 million at year-&887 which was down from $1.90
million at yearend 1996. Nonperforming assets consist of loam®iraccrual status and other real estate. The 8Bcbnsisted of other re
estate of $484 thousand and $253 thousand in naredoans. The other real estate consisted of $3&4sand in a commercial property
originally acquired as a potential branch site aad held for sale and $130 thousand in foreclosatlestate. Nonaccrual loans consisted of
$101 thousand in commercial loans and $152 thousemmbrtgage loans. The Company has aggressively déh these credits and specific
action plans have been developed for each of ttiassified loans to address any deficiencies. Laéilt@ccruing interest but past due 90
days or more increased to $641 thousand as of Oeaedd, 1998 compared to $455 thousand as of Demreddh 1997, which decreased
from $1.34 million as of December 31, 1996.

The allowance for loan losses is analyzed for adeyjon a quarterly basis to determine the requiradunt of provision for loan losses. A
loan-by-loan review is conducted on all significalassified commercial and mortgage loans. Inhdomsies on these individual loans are
determined and an allocation of the allowance dvigied. Smaller nonclassified commercial and maytég@ans and all consumer loans are
grouped by homogeneous pools with an allocatioigasd to each pool based on an analysis of histididss and delinquency experience,
trends, economic conditions, underwriting standaads other factors.

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased $637 thousand, or 15% iB #@® 1997 compared to an increase of $138 thalysaB8% in 1997 from 1996. The
1998 increase was due to higher Trust Servicesdiegservice charges on deposit accounts. Theduecienced excellent growth in
transaction deposit accounts in 1998. The 199%2asm was due primarily to Trust Services fees &mer gervice charge income.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased $489 thousand or 4% Bid89 1997 after increasing 5% in 1997 from 1996e to a one-time insurance rebate
in 1998 salaries and employee benefits increasamhlyy$127 thousand or 2% in 1998. Occupancy experseased $94 thousand, or 119
1998 primarily due to costs associated with thenoeof a new office building in Newport News VA h is home to Trust and Financial
Services and a Commercial Loan office. Equipmepeage increased $75 thousand or 7% due to higpeedation expense on new
computer systems and related service contractequigment repairs. Other operating expenses inededt93 thousand or 6%. Expenses
contributing to the increase were marketing andacusr development costs which helped provide ferldkan and deposit growth. Due to the
extensive loan growth, loan expenses associatédonijinating those loans increased sharply in 1998

ASSETS

At December 31, 1998, the Company had total as$&t404.1 million, up 16% from $348.7 million at @mmber 31, 1997. Average assets in
1998 were $380.8 million compared to $332.2 millieri997. The growth in assets in 1998 was dubedricrease in deposits which were up
20% in 1998. These deposits funded an increas2%fid investment securities.

The Company has purchased a branch site in NoyeTke Company is building a new branch of appratiety 2,500 square feet. The
branch will provide full service banking includiegnsumer and business services.
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LOANS

Total loans as of December 31, 1998 were $235 omilup 6% from $221.7 million at December 31, Z98ommercial loans as well as real
estate construction loans accounted for the grawthe loan portfolio growing 45% and 41%, respedlii. Installment loans to individuals
decreased from 1997 due primarily to a reductiothénindirect dealer loan portfolio. Footnote 3hoé financial statements details the loan
volume by category for the past two years.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

At December 31, 1998 total investment securitieeevd 37.5 million, up 42% from $96.5 million on Eecber 31, 1997. The goal of the
Company is to provide maximum return on the investhportfolio within the framework of its assetiibity objectives. These objectives
include managing interest sensitivity, liquiditydapledging requirements.

DEPOSITS

At December 31, 1998, total deposits amounted &3 $Bmillion, up 20% from $287.1 million on Deceml34, 1997. Non-interest bearing
deposits increased $13.0 million, or 25%, in 1998rd 997. Savings deposits increased $21.7 milbo22%, in 1998 over 1997. Certificates
of Deposit increased $21.6 million or 16% in 1998101997.

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Total stockholders' equity as of December 31, 1888 $40.0 million, up 10% from $36.3 million on Reaber 31, 1997. The Company is
required to maintain minimum amounts of capital@migianking regulations. Under the regulations, MGtpital is composed of core capital
(Tier 1) and supplemental capital (Tier 2). Tiarapital consists of common stockholders' equitg gesodwill. Tier 2 capital consists of
certain qualifying debt and a qualifying portiontbé allowance for loan losses. The following suanmary of the Company's capital ratios
for 1998, 1997 and 1996.

1998 1998 1997 1996

Regulatory

Requirements
Tier 1 4.00% 14.89% 15.06% 15.63 %
Total Capital 8.00% 15.98% 16.19% 16.76 %

Tier 1 Leverage 3.00% 10.26% 10.32% 10.21%

Year-end book value was $15.54 in 1998 and $141®97. Cash dividends were $1.2 million, or $.48ghare in 1998 and $1.0 million, or
$.41 per share in 1997. The common stock of thegamy has not been extensively traded. The tabtabsthows the high and low prices for
each quarter of 1998 and 1997. During 1997 theksi@s not listed on an exchange and was not quit@tASDQ. Bid and ask prices were
not available and the trading of stock was limitElde 1997 prices were based on a limited numb#&aaosactions known to Management in
1997. Beginning in 1998 the stock was quoted orCthi€ Bulletin Board under the symbol "OPOF" and gihiees below are based on trades
through the OTC Bulletin Board. There were 148@ldolders of the Company as of December 31, 198B. §tockholder count does not
include stockholders who hold their stock in a noeei registration. The following is a summary of diddends paid and market price on Old
Point Financial Corporation common stock for 1988 4997.
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1998 1997 Market Value Market Value

Dividend High Low Dividen d High Low
1st Quarter $0.11 $39.00 $25.50 $0.10 $20.75 $20.75
2nd Quarter  $0.11 $44.00 $37.00 $0.10 $21.00 $20.75
3rd Quarter  $0.13 $43.00 $38.00 $0.10 $21.25 $20.75
4th Quarter  $0.13 $40.50 $30.00 $0.11 $25.00 $21.00

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity is the ability of the Company to meet peait and future obligations through the acquisitibadditional liabilities or sale of existing
assets. Management considers the liquidity of the@any to be adequate. Sufficient assets are nvaatan a short-term basis to meet the
liquidity demands anticipated by Management. Initamlt] secondary sources are available throughuieeof borrowed funds if the need
should arise.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION

Management believes that the key to achievingfaatizry performance in an inflationary environmanits ability to maintain or improve its
net interest margin and to generate additionairfeeme. The Company's policy of investing in andding with interest-sensitive assets and
liabilities is intended to reduce the risks inhéfi@ma volatile inflationary economy.

Year 2000

The "Year 2000" problem relates to the fact thabhyneomputer programs use two digits to define a gwad assume that the century is 1900.
Therefore, these programs will not recognize the i the century. The Company has a five-step fiadentify, correct, upgrade and test all
of its hardware and software. The five phases@fillan are awareness, assessment, renovatiorati@idand implementation. This plan
conforms to the standard established by the Fe8i@rahcial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEGhe Company is on schedule to meet
the regulatory deadlines established by the FFAEear 2000 project team has been assembled whégison a monthly basis to monitor
progress and address any new issues that might &tie Company has identified and cataloged atsdfardware and software. Software i
hardware that is not Year 2000 compliant has beentified and is being upgraded and/or replacedlitAuhally, the Company's major
vendors and customers are being contacted to deetheir Year 2000 efforts. These vendors andotasts have indicated that they are ®
2000 compliant or are on schedule to become contplia

The Company is dependent on public utility compsibdesupply electricity, gas, water, sewage, algttanmunications. These utility
companies have provided Old Point with some infdiomaregarding their status in becoming Year 200@gliant. The Year 2000 project
team continues to monitor their progress. The Caomas reviewed its non-information technology ek and has determined that there
are no material systems that have imbedded migueckhich would be affected by the Year 2000 datdlem.

The worst case scenario for Year 2000 would bestenyic failure of electric power and communicatibesveen our branch offices, main
office, and third party providers of services sashPATM's and electronic transactions. Old Poimtseigeloping a plan to provide a process that
will enable the Company to stabilize operationsmatimum acceptable levels. This business resumgiimtingency plan entails the manual
processing of transactions that impact customesiats. The Company has installed a diesel geneaitbe Main Office location to provide
electricity in the event of a power failure. A mimal level of service to our customers can be manathat the Main Office until the power is
restored.
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The Company purchased its core application softwduieh processes loans, deposits and general |éagarFiserv. Fiserv performed
extensive testing of its software and has statatlitiis Year 2000 compliant under their test ctinds. The Company has successfully tested
the core applications for Year 2000 complianceaddition, other software that interfaces with tbeecapplication is also being tested. This
testing is expected to be complete by the firsttgnaf 1999. The Company continues to upgraderdthedware and software as needed. The
Company plans to complete the five phases of i 2600 plan for existing hardware and softwarddoye 30, 1999. Any hardware or
software purchased subsequently will also be tdstedear 2000 compliance.

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OQ€Yyesponsible for examining the Bank for comptmio the regulatory standard. In
addition, the internal audit department has coreplein audit verifying and validating the proceshesCompany uses to test the applications.

Operating and capital budgets incorporate projeeigeknditures necessary to ensure that all sysieengear 2000 compliant. Through
December 31, 1998 the Company has spent approXing880 thousand in capital expenditures to upgresdeomputer hardware and
software to be Year 2000 compliant. In additiore @ompany has spent approximately $125 thousaagdrating expenses to test its
software applications and hardware for Year 200@m@nce. An additional $250 thousand in capitgdenditures is budgeted for the
remainder of 1999 for Year 2000 hardware and saftwagrades as well as another $75 thousand foatipg expenses to complete the
testing for Year 2000 compliance. At this time n@araent does not believe that Year 2000 relatedrefuges will have an adverse material
effect on the Company.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements and relaisthbtes of the company are presented below folidwyethe financial statements of the
parent.

The following are the summarized financial stateth@fithe Company.
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Board of Directors

Old Point Financial Corporation
Hampton, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Old Point Financial Corporation arzssliary as of December 31, 1998
and 1997, and the related consolidated stateméinisame, cash flows and changes in stockholdexstefor each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 1998. These finlastai@ments are the responsibility of the Commamganagement. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on these financial statemersisdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaltepted auditing standards. Those standardsedhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tisoligated financial statements are free of mdtarisstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingtheunts and disclosures in the consolidated fiahatatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above, present fairly, in all materéspects, the consolidated financial
position of Old Point Financial Corporation and sidiary as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, anddhseatidated results of their operations
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended December 31, 1998, in conformitly generally accepted accounting
principles.

/sl Eggl eston Snith P.C

Eggl eston Smith P.C

January 15, 1999
Newport News, Virginia
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Investments:
Securities available-for-sale, at market
Securities to be held-to-maturity
(Market value $55,424 in 1998 and $29,096 in 199
Federal funds sold
Loans, total
Less - allowance for loan losses

Net loans
Premises and equipment
Other real estate owned
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Non interest-bearing deposits
Savings deposits

Certificates of deposit

Total deposits

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements

Interest bearing demand notes issued to the United
States Treasury and other liabilities for borrowe

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $5 par value, 6,000,000 shares author
Issued 2,575,444 in 1998 and 2,566,172 in 1997
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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1998

1997

(Dollars in Thousands)

$ 10,311 $12,208
82,568 67,546
7) 54,919 28,980
6,578 6,977
235,865 221,744
2,855 2,671
233,010 219,073
12,052 9,742
484 774
4,196 3,371
$404,118 $348,671
$ 65,336 $ 52,360
121,682 99,991
156,395 134,749
343,413 287,100
19,128 20,165
d money 348 4,025
1,216 1,049
364,105 312,339
ized
12,877 12,831
10,020 9,693
16,285 13,098
831 710
40,013 36,332
$404,118 $348,671




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on investment securities
Taxable
Exempt from income tax

Interest on trading account securities
Interest on federal funds sold

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on savings deposits

Interest on certificates of deposit

Interest on federal funds purchased and securities
sold under repurchase agreements

Interest on demand notes issued to the United
States Treasury and other liabilities for

borrowed money

Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan lo

OTHER INCOME

Income from fiduciary activities

Service charges on deposit accounts

Other service charges, commissions and fees
Security gains (losses), net

Income from trading account

Other operating income

Total other income

OTHER EXPENSE

Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense
Equipment expense

Other operating expense

Total other expenses

Income before income taxes
Income taxes

Net income

Basic Earnings per Share

Average shares outstanding (in thousands)
Net income per share of common stock
Diluted Earnings per Share

Average shares outstanding (in thousands)
Net income per share of common stock

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1998 1997 1996

(Dollars in Thousands except per share amounts)

$ 20,190 $ 19,203 $ 17,580

5,284 4,473 4,736
1,759 1,290 853
7,043 5,763 5,589
0 0 0
572 276 208

27,805 25,242 23,377

3,390 2,773 2,721

8,201 6,948 6,582

1,013 861 706
96 99 84

12,700 10,681 10,093

15,105 14,561 13,284
650 600 600

sses 14,455 13,961 12,684

22

1,930 1,750 1,667
1,986 1,723 1,887
642 573 360

0 (1) 2
0 0 0
353 229 220

4,911 4,274 4,136

7,797 7,670 7,406
940 846 768
1,169 1,094 1,029
3,287 3,094 2,863

13,193 12,704 12,066

6,173 5,531 4,754
1,537 1,441 1,309

$ 4636 $ 4,090 $ 3,445

2,571 2,561 2,547
$1.80 $1.60 $1.35

2,595 2,575 2,563
$1.79 $1.59 $1.34



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net inCOMe.......ccevveiiriiieeieeee e,
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization....................
Provision for loan losses............cccccue.e..
(Gains) losses on sale of investment securities,
Net amortization & accretion of securities.......
Net (increase) decrease in trading account.......
Loss on sale of equipment.............ccceueee.
(Increase) decrease in other real estate owned....
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(net of tax effect of FASB 115 adjustment).....
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities.........

Net cash provided by operating activities......

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investment securities ..............
Proceeds from maturities & calls of securities ..
Proceeds from sales of available - for - sale sec
Proceeds from sales of held - to - maturity secur
Loans made to customers............cccccevvenne
Principal payments received on loans.............
Purchases of premises and equipment..............
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment....
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned...
(Increase) decrease in federal funds sold........

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in non-interest bearing depos
Increase (decrease) in savings deposits..........
Proceeds from the sale of certificates of deposit
Payments for maturing certificates of deposit....
Increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased &

repurchase agreements............ccccccueenee.
Increase (decrease) in interest bearing
demand notes and other borrowed money.
Proceeds from issuance of common stock...........
Dividends paid..........ccccoeuiieeeniineennn.

Net cash provided by financing activities......

Net increase (decrease) in cash and due from ba
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period.

Cash and due from banks at end of period.......

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for:
INterest.......vvvieiieieieeiieeeeiiiinn
INncome taxes......cccovveeveveviiieniininnnnn,

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING TRANSAIONS

Unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities, net of taX...........ccceeeeeeis

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

1998 1997 1996
........ $ 4636 $ 4,090 $ 3,445
........ 990 941 883
........ 650 600 600
net..... 0 1 2)
........ 169 368 679
........ 0 0 0
........ 0 0 110
........ (297) (613) 152
........ (887) 16 357
........ 167 59 (117)
........ 5,428 5,462 6,107
(77,059) (31,001) (30,015)
R 36,111 23,949 24,171
urities 0 6,218 2,003
ities 0 0 0
........ (147,183) (123,513) (105,807)
........ 132,596 100,094 96,057
........ (3,303) (1,304) (2,113)
........ 4 23 20
........ 587 193 448
........ 399 (6,416) (48)
ties....  (57,848) (31,757) (15,284)
its..... 12,976 4,826 4,632
........ 21,691 3,794 391
........ 57,762 59,771 43,478
........ (36,116)  (44,810) (41,517
........ (2,037) 3,030 1,399
........ (3,677) 1,724 1,741
........ 158 230 0
........ (1,234) (1,050) (891)
........ 50,523 27,515 9,233
nks..... (1,897) 1,220 56
........ 12,208 10,988 10,932
........ $ 10,311 $ 12,208 $ 10,988
........ $ 12,533 $ 10,587 $ 10,126
........ 1,600 1,475 1,275
........ $ 121 $ 662 ($482)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERBQUITY

Common
Stock
(Par Va

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Balance, beginning of year $ 6,368
Comprehensive income
Net income 0
(Decrease) Increase in unrealized gain
on investment securities 0
Total Comprehensive income 0
Sale of stock 0
Cash dividends paid 0

Balance, end of year $ 6,368

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

Balance, beginning of year $ 6,368
Comprehensive income
Net income 0
(Decrease) Increase in unrealized gain
on investment securities 0
Total Comprehensive income 0
Sale of stock 48
Stock dividend declared on common stock 6,415
Cash dividends paid 0
Balance, end of year $12,831

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

Balance, beginning of year $12,831
Comprehensive income
Net income 0
(Decrease) Increase in unrealized gain
on investment securities 0
Total Comprehensive income 0
Sale of stock 46
Cash dividends paid 0

Balance, end of year $12,877

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Accumulated
Other Total
Capital Retained Comprehensive Stockhold
lue) Surplus Earnings Income(Loss) Equity

(Dollars in Thousands)

$9,345 $14,085 $ 530 $30,328
0 3,445 0 3,445

0 0 (482 (482)

0 3445 (482) 2,963
0 0 0 0
0  (891) 0 (891)

$9,345 $16,639 $ 48 $32,400

$9,345 $16,639 $ 48 $32,400
0 4,090 0 4,090

0 0 662 662

0 4090 662 4,752
348 (166) 0 230

0 (6,415) 0 0

0 (1,050) 0  (1,050)

$9,693 $13,098 $ 710 $36,332

$9,693 $13,098 $ 710 $36,332
0 4,636 0 4,636

0 0 121 121

0 4636 121 4,757
327 (215) 0 158
0 (1,234 0 (1,234

$10,020 $16,285 $ 831 $40,013
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NOTE 2, Investment Securities

At December 31, 1998, the investment securitief@ar is composed of securities classified as Heldnaturity and available-for-sale, in
conjunction with SFAS 115. Investment securitielslfie-maturity are carried at cost, adjusted fooaimation of premiums and accretions of
discounts, and investment securities availablesfde-are carried at market value.

The amortized cost and fair value of investmentisges held-to-maturity at December 31, 1998 a@é7] were:

Amortized Unrealiz ed Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in Thousan ds)

Obligations of other United
States Government Agencies
as of December 31, 1998 $54,919 $505 $0 $55,424

Obligations of other United
States Government Agencies
as of December 31, 1997 $28,980 $128 ($12)  $29,096

The amortized cost and fair values of investmeatistes available-for-sale at December 31, 1998we

Amortized Unr ealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gai ns Losses  Value
(Dollars in Thousands)

United States Treasury securities $7,526 $ 30 $0 $ 7,556
Obligations of other United States

Government agencies 19,611 2 61 (24) 19,848
Obligations of state and political

subdivisions 48,596 1, 395 (235) 49,756
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Fund 4,400 0 (161) 4,239
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 1,042 0 0 1,042
Federal Reserve Bank stock 85 0 0 85

Other marketable equity securities 50 0 (8) 42
Total $81,310 $1, 686  ($428) $82,568

The amortized cost and fair values of investmeatistes available-for-sale at December 31, 1997ewe

Amortized Unr ealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gai ns Losses  Value
(Dollars in Thousands)
United States Treasury Securities $22,189 $ 93  ($63) $22,219
Obligations of other United States
Government agencies 10,957 121 (28) 11,050
Obligations of State and Political
subdivisions 27,844 1, 052 0 28,896
Adjustable Rate Mortgage Fund 4,400 0 (99) 4,301
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 945 0 0 945
Federal Reserve Bank stock 85 0 0 85
Other marketable equity Securities 50 0 0 50
Total $66,470 $1, 266 ($190) $67,546
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NOTE 2, Investment Securities (Continued)

Investment securities carried at $37.8 million &36.4 million at December 31, 1998 and 1997, retbpedy, were pledged to secure public
deposits and securities sold under agreementptoatease and for other purposes required or pemnity law.

The amortized cost and approximate market valuésvestment securities at December 31, 1998 byraottal maturity are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual tugties because borrowers may have the right lcoc@repay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 1998

Ava ilable-For-Sale Held-To-Maturity
Amor tized Market Amortized  Market
Cost Value Cost Value
(Dollars in Thousands)
Due in one year or less $7, 526 $ 7,556 $ 0 $ 0
Due after one year through five years 16, 287 16,530 36,483 36,813
Due after five years through ten years 24, 002 24,804 18,436 18,611
Due after ten years 27, 917 28,270 0 0
Total debt securities 75, 732 77,160 54,919 55,424
Other securities without stated maturities 5, 578 5,408 0 0
Total investment securities $81, 310 $82,568 $54,919 $55,424

The proceeds from the sale and maturities of imvest securities, and the related realized gaindaases are shown below:

1998 1997 1996
(Dollars in Th ousands)
Proceeds from sales and
maturities of investments $36,111 $30,167 $26,174
Realized gains $ 0% 3 $ 2
Realized losses 0 4 0
Net gains (losses) $ 0% (1 )$ 2



NOTE 3, Loans

At December 31, loans before allowance for loasdesconsisted of:

1998 1997
(Dollarsin T housands)
Commercial and other $ 65,143 $ 45,059
Real estate - construction 5,418 3,836
Real estate - mortgage 105,285 104,141
Installment loans to individuals 58,618 66,615
Tax exempt loans 1,401 2,093
Total $235,865 $221,744

Information concerning loans which are contractuplist due or in non-accrual status is as follows:

1998 1997

(Dollarsin T housands)
Contractually past due loans -
past due 90 days or more and
still accruing interest $641 $455

Loans which are in
non-accrual status $253 $660

The Bank has had, and may be expected to have iiutire, banking transactions in the ordinary sewf business with directors, executive
officers, their immediate families, and companiesvhich they are principal owners (commonly refdne as related parties), on the same
terms, including interest rates and collaterathase prevailing at the time for comparable tratisas with others. The aggrgate direct and
indirect loans of these persons totaled $1.8 mildad $1.9 million at December 31, 1998 and 1988pectively. These totals do not include
loans made in the ordinary course of businessheraompanies where a director or executive offiehe Bank was also a director or offi
of such company but not a principal owner. Non#efdirectors or executive officers had directraliiect loans exceeding 10% of
stockholders' equity at December 31, 1998.

The bank does not account for any of its loans utideprovisions of Statement of Financial AccongtStandards No. 114 or 118 related to
impaired loans.

NOTE 4, Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are ksvs]

1998 1997 1996
(Dollars in Thousands)
Balance, beginning of year $2,671 $2,33 0 $2,251
Recoveries 481 60 9 404
Provision for loan losses 650 60 0 600
Loans charged off (947) (86 8) (925)

Balance, end of year $2,855 $2,67 1 $2,330



NOTE 5, Premises and Equipment

At December 31, premises and equipment consisted of

199 8 1997
(Dollar s in Thousands)

Land $2, 458 $2,133
Buildings 9, 879 7,806
Leasehold improvements 882 855
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9, 925 9,051
Total cost 23, 144 19,845
Less accumulated

depreciation and amortization 11, 092 10,103

Net book value $12, 052 $9,742

NOTE 6, Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate consisted of the following atddelser 31:

1998 1997

(D(-)-lL‘;II'S in TE(-)-usands)
Foreclosed real estate $130 $420
Property held for sale 354 354
Total -—;484 $%74

NOTE 7, Indebtedness

The Bank's short-term borrowings include federabfupurchased, securities sold under repurchasermagnts (including $1.4 million to
directors in 1998 and $4.0 million in 1997) and tddiStates Treasury Demand Notes. The federal fomdthased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements are held under various megwand interest rates. The United States Tred3enyand Notes are subject to call by the
United States Treasury with interest paid monthitha rate of 25 basis points (1/4%) below the felinds rate.

NOTE 8, Stock Option Plan

The Company has stock option plans which reser@e6B4 shares of common stock for grants to key eyels. The exercise price of each
option equals the market price of the Company'snaomstock on the date of the grant and an optioa)émum term is ten years. A summ
of the exercisable incentive stock options is pneese below:

Outstanding Granted Exercised Expired Outstanding
Beginning During During During At End
of Year the Year the Year the Year of Year
1996
Shares 64,474 28,772  (500) (400) 92,346
Weighted average exercisable price $16.41 $18.75 $18.13 $18.13  $17.13
1997
Shares 92,346 25,754 (22,280) (11,286) 84,534
Weighted average exercisable price $17.13 $20.75 $13.12 $18.60 $19.09
1998
Shares 84,534 64,500 (5,400) 0 143,634
Weighted average exercisable price $19.09 $4186 $1854 $ 0  $29.33

At December 31, 1998, exercise prices on outstgnoitions ranged from $18.13 to $41.86 per shadelamweighted average remaining
contractual life was 8 years.
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NOTE 8, Stock Option Plan (Continued)

The Company accounts for its stock option plarsceordance with APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting &tock Issued to Employees, which
does not allocate costs to stock options grantedra¢ént market values. The Company could, astemaltive, allocate costs to stock options
using option pricing models, as provided in Stateinoé Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Acting for StockBased Compensatio
Because of the limited number of options grantetitae limited amount of trading activity in the Cpamy's stock, management believes that
stock options are best accounted for in accordaitteAPB Opinion No. 25. However, had the stockiops been accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 123, pro-forma amountsi&rearnings and earnings per share would havedse®llows for each of the years
ending December 31:

1998 1997 1996
Pro-forma net income (in thousands) $4,565 $4,041 $3,401
Pro-forma earnings per share $1.76 $1.57 $1.33

Pro-forma amounts were computed using a 6% rigkifreerest rate over a 10 year term using an ardividiend rate of between 1.33% and
1.74% and a .01% volatility rate.

The proforma effect of the potential exercise of stockiapd on basic earnings per share would be to iseré@ number of weighted aver
number of outstanding shares by approximately 24i00998, 14,000 in 1997, and 16,000 in 1996.

The Company also has an Employee Stock PurchaseMPiah reserves 66,260 shares of common stocéligible employees. The purchase
price is 95% of the lesser of (1) the common s®fdit market value at July 1 or (2) the commortls®fair market value at the following
June 30. During 1998, 4,780 shares of common steck purchased by employees.

NOTE 9, Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense are as fallows

1998 1997 1 996
-il-D-oIIa-r—s:-i-n T—housa nds)
Currently payable $1,564 $1,458 $ 1,214
Deferred 27y @7 95
Reported tax expen-s; ------- ?$;1,5-37 $1,441 $ 1309

The items that caused timing differences affectiafigrred income taxes are as follows:

1998 1997 1 996

(Dollars in Thousan ds)
Provision for loan losses  $ (156) $ (186) $ (8)
Pension plan expenses 46 17 32
Deferred loan fees, net (22) 24 21
Security gains and losses 0 4) 7
Interest on certain
non-accrual loans 68 95 8
Depreciation 31 37 46
Other 6 0 3
Total $(27) $(17) $ 95

A reconciliation of the "expected" Federal incorae ¢xpense on income before income taxes withegperted income tax expense follows:

1998 1997 19 96
(Dollars in Thousand s)
Expected tax expense (34%) $2,099 $1,880 $1 ,616
Interest expense on tax
exempt assets 82 57 38

Tax exempt interest (640) (494) (352)



Disqualified incentive

stock options (10 @
Other, net 6 0
Reported tax expense $1,537 $1,441 $1

,309



NOTE 9, Income Taxes (Continued)

The components of the net deferred tax asset iedlidother assets are as follows at December 31:

(Dollars in Thousands)

Components of Deferred Tax Liability:

Depreciation $ (17 9) $(147)

Accretion of discounts on securities ( 9) 9)

Net unrealized (gain) on

available-for-sale securities (42 8) (366)

Deferred loan fees and costs (7 0) (91)

Pension 3 8) 0
Deferred tax liability (72 4) (613)

Components of Deferred Tax Asset:
Allowance for loan losses 70 9 552
Net unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities 0 0
Interest on non-accrual loans 14 7 216
Deferred compensation 5 8
Pension 0 8
Deferred tax asset, net $ 13 7 $ 171

NOTE 10, Lease Commitments

The Bank has noncancellable leases on premisescuipiment expiring at various dates, including esiens to the year 2011. Certain leases
provide for increased annual payments based orases in real estate taxes and the Consumer Rdeg. |

The total approximate minimum rental commitmerDatember 31, 1998, under noncancellable leas&@2B thousand which is due as
follows:

Year (Dollars in Thou sands)
1999  $170
2000 109
2001 109
2002 108
2003 68
Remaining term of leases 358
Total $922

The aggregate rental expense of premises and eqotpeas $220 thousand, $208 thousand and $191ahddier 1998, 1997, and 1996
respectively.
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NOTE 11, Pension Plan

The following tables set forth the Pension Plahanges in benefit obligation, plan assets, fundtlis, assumptions and the components of
net periodic benefit cost recognized in the Bafik@ncial statements at December 31:

P ension Benefits
199 8 1997
(Doll ars in Thousands)

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $2 ,445 $2,261
Service cost 148 142
Interest cost 193 179
Actuarial gain 0 32
Benefits paid (151) (169)
Benefit obligation at end of year $2 ,635 $2,445
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $2 ,341 $2,003
Actual return on plan assets 329 302
Employer contribution 288 206
Benefits paid (151) (169)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $2 ,807 $2,342
Funded status $( 172) $103
Unrecognized prior service cost (36) (43)
Unrecognized transition obligation 38 50
Unrecognized actuarial gains (loss) 55 (88)
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost ( 115) $22

Weighted-average assumptions as of
December 31:

199 8 1997
Discount rate 8.0 0% 8.00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.0 0% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increase 5.0 0% 5.00%
1998 1997 1996

rs in Thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost  (Dolla

Service Cost $148 $141 $146
Interest cost 193 179 168
Expected return on plan assets (185) (158) (131)
Amortization of prior service cost 7 6 17
Amortization of transition obligation (12) (12) (12)
Net periodic benefit cost $151 $156 $188

NOTE 12, Profit Sharing

The Bank has a defined contribution profit shaiamgl thrift plan covering substantially all of itsployees. The Bank may make profit
sharing contributions to the plan as determinethbyBoard of Directors. In addition, the Bank ma&khrift contributions by employees fifty
cents for each dollar contributed. Expenses relatdde plan totaled $283 thousand and $ 258 thmlisal1998 and 1997 respectively.
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NOTE 13, Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Bank makasusacommitments and incurs certain contingemilities. These commitments and
contingencies represent off-balance sheet riskii®Bank. To meet the financing needs of its custsithe Bank makes lending

commitments under commercial lines of credit, hageity loans and construction and development loBims Bank also incurs contingent
liabilities related to irrevocable letters of criedi

Off- balance sheet items at December 31 are asifsil

1998 1997
(Dollars in Thousands)

Commitments to extend credit:

Home equity lines of credit $10,463 $9,748
Construction and development

loans committed but not funded 9,168 7,124
Other lines of credit

(principally commercial) 32,514 19,556
Total $52,145 $36,428
Irrevocable letters of credit $646 $822

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteacdcustomer as long as there is no violatioangfcondition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymgatfee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beirgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not reza#ég represent future cash
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customed# erorthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amnbuentlateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Bank, upon extensions of crebsed on management's credit evaluation of themmes. Collateral held varies but may
include accounts receivable, inventory, properignpand equipment, and income-producing commepeigberties.

Standby letters of credit and financial guaranteggen are conditional commitments issued by taekbto guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Those guarantees aneapity issued to support private borrowing agreetnieost guarantees extend for less than
two years and expire in decreasing amounts thra9§®. The credit risk involved in issuing lettefsedit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loans to customers. The Baolkls various collateral supporting those committaéor which collateral is deemed
necessary.
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NOTE 14, Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of the Bank's financiatioments at December 31 are as follows:

1998 1997
Carry ing Fair Carrying  Fair
Amou nt Value Amount  Value
(Dolla rs in Thousands) (Dollars in Thousands)

Cash and due from banks $ 10, 311 $10,311 $12,208 $ 12,208
Investment securities, held-to-maturity 54, 919 55,424 28,980 29,096
Investment securities, available-for-sale 82, 568 82,568 67,546 67,546
Federal funds sold 6, 578 6,578 6,977 6,977
Loans, net of allowances for loan losses 233, 010 234,072 219,073 217,913
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits 65, 336 65,336 52,360 52,360
Savings deposits 121, 682 121,682 99,991 99,991
Certificates of Deposit 156, 395 157,322 134,749 134,330
Securities sold under repurchase
agreement and federal funds purchased 19, 128 19,128 20,165 20,165
Interest bearing U.S. Treasury demand
notes and other liabilities
for borrowed money 348 348 4,025 4,025
Commitments to extend credit 52, 145 52,145 36,428 36,428
Irrevocable letters of credit 646 646 822 822

The above presentation of fair values is requinethke Statement of Financial Accounting Standards107 "Disclosures about Market
Values of Financial Instruments”. The fair valubswsn do not necessarily represent the amounts whithd be received on sale or other
disposition of the instrument.

The carrying amounts of cash and due from bankieré funds sold, demand and savings depositsemdites sold under repurchase
agreements represent items which do not presemifisant market risks, are payable on demand oo&geich short duration that the market
value approximates carrying value.

Investment securities are valued at the quoted eharce for individual securities held.

The fair value of loans is estimated by discounfirtgre cash flows using current rates at whichlsinbbans would be made to borrowers.
Certificates of deposit are presented at estimf@iedalue using rates currently offered for depmsf similar remaining maturities.

NOTE 15, Regulatory Matters

The Company is required to maintain minimum amooftsapital to "risk weighted" assets, as defingdHe banking regulators. At
December 31, 1998, the Company is required to h@ameanum Tier 1 and Total capital ratios of 4.00%l&100% respectively. The
Company's actual ratios at that date were 14.8994.&r98%. The Company's leverage ratio at DeceBibet998 was 10.26%.

The approval of the Comptroller of the Currencyeiguired if the total of all dividends declareddwpational bank in any calendar year
exceeds the bank's net profits for that year coetbinith its retained net profits for the precediwg calendar years. Under this formula, the
banking subsidiary can distribute as dividendh®@ompany in 1999, without approval of the Comgraf the Currency, $6.3 million plus
an additional amount equal to the Bank's retairetgrofits for 1999 up to the date of any dividetetlaration.
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OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION
PARENT ONLY
BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
Dollars in thousands 1998 1997

ASSETS

Cash in bank $ 294 $ 289
Investment securities 2,107 1,877
Total Loans 0 0
Investment in subsidiary 37,598 34,171
Other real estate owned 0 0
Other assets 14 8

TOTAL ASSETS $40,013 $36,345

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Notes payable -bank $ 0 $ O
Other liabilities 0 13

Total liabilities 0 13

Stockholders' equity 40,013 36,332

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $40,013 $36,345

OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION
PARENT ONLY
INCOME STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31,

Dollars in thousands 1998 1997

INCOME

Cash dividends from subsidiary $1,300 $ 1,000

Interest and Fees on Loans 0
Interest income from
investment securities 106

Other income

TOTAL INCOME 1,406 1,106

EXPENSES

Interest on borrowed money 0
Other expenses 41

TOTAL EXPENSES 41

Income before taxes and undistributed

net income of subsidiary 1365 1056

Income tax

Net income before undistributed

net income of subsidiary 1,343 1,037
Undistributed net income of subsidiary 3,293

NET INCOME

$4,636 $ 4,090
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OLD POINT FINAN
PARENT
STATEMENT OF C

For the year ending December 31,
Dollars in thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Pro
operating activities:

Equity in undistributed (earnings) losses of subsid
Market write-down on other real estate owned
Increase (decrease) in other assets

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Purchase)/Sales of Investments
Sale or repayment of investments in and

advances to subsidiaries
(Purchase)/Sale of Premises and Equipment
Loans to customers
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in borrowed money
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Dividends paid
Other, net

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net increase in cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period

Cash and due from banks at end of period

Accounting Rule Changes

None.

Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions

For the reserve maintenance period in effect aeBéer 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 the bank was requinegintain with the Federal Reserve
Bank of Richmond an average daily balance totadipgroximately $350 thousand, $400 thousand andriblian respectively.

CIAL CORPORATION
ONLY
ASH FLOWS

1998 1997 1996

$4,636 $4,090 $3,445
vided by

iaries (3,293) (3,053) (2,546)
0 0 0
0 53 12
(12) 11 0

(250) (200) O

0 0 0
0 16 0
0 48 2

(250) (136) 2

0 0 0
158 231 0
(1,234) (1,050) (892)
0 0

(1,076) (819) (892)

5 146 21
289 143 122

$ 294 $ 289 $ 143

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.



PART IlI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Rgistrant

The eleven persons named below, all of whom cugreetve as directors of the Company, will be naatéd to serve as directors until the
2000 Annual Meeting, or until their successors hasen duly elected and have qualified.

Principal
Director Occupation For
Name and (Age) Since (1) Past Five Years

Dr. Richard F. Clark (66) 1981 Pathologist(reti
Sentara Hampton Gener

Gertrude S. Dixon (85) 1981 Real Estate Mana
and Ownership

Russell Smith Evans Jr. (56) 1993 Assistant Treasu
Corporate Fleet
Ferguson Enterpr

G. Royden Goodson, Il (43) 1994 President
Warwick Plumbing

Dr. Arthur D. Greene (54) 1994 Surgeon - Partne
Tidewater Orthop

Stephen D. Harris (57) 1988 Attorney-at-Law
Geddy, Harris &

John Cabot Ishon (52) 1989 President
Hampton Statione

Eugene M. Jordan (75) 1964 Attorney-at-Law
Cumming, Hatchet

John B. Morgan, Il (52) 1994 President
Morgan-Marrow In

Dr. H. Robert Schappert (60) 1996 Veterinarian - O
Beechmont Veteri

Robert F. Shuford (61) 1965 Chairman of the
President & CEO
Financial Corpor
Chairman of the
President & CEO
Point National B

*Represents less than 1.0% of the total outstansliages.
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(1) Refers to the year in which the individual ficecame a director of the Bank. Dr. Richard FriCl&ertrude S. Dixon, Eugene M. Jordan,
and Robert F. Shuford became directors of the Casnppon consummation of the Bank's reorganizatio®otober 1, 1984. All present
directors of the Company are directors of the Bank.

(2) For purposes of this table, beneficial owngrdtas been determined in accordance with the poodiof Rule 13d-3 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 under which, in general, &q@eis deemed to be the beneficial owner of a #gdfihe or she has or shares the power
to vote or direct the voting of the security or gewver to dispose of or direct the dispositiontef $ecurity, or if he or she has the right to
acquire beneficial ownership of the security witkixty days.

(3) Includes shares held (i) by their close rekgior held jointly with their spouses, (ii) as adan or trustee for the benefit of their children
or others, or (iii) as attorney-in-fact subjecitgeneral power of attorney - Dr. Clark, 200 shavirs Evans, 650 shares; Dr. Greene, 1,968

shares; Mr. Harris, 400 shares, Mr. Ishon, 3,4&0es) Mr. Jordan, 14,000 shares; Mr. Morgan, 2g¥0es; Dr. Schappert, 81,370 shares;

and Mr. Shuford, 75,590 shares.

(4) Includes shares that may be acquired withid@®@ pursuant to the exercise of stock optionstgdannder the 1989 Old Point Stock
Option Plan - Mr. Shuford 21,794.

There are two family relationships among the doectind executive officers. Mr. Jordan is the fathdaw of Mr. Ishon. Mr. Shuford and
Dr. Schappert are married to sisters. None of ttextbrs serve as a director of any other compaitly avclass of securities registered purs
to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act 0f4193

There were no delinquent Securities and Exchanga Bdilings during 1998.

In addition to the executive officer included iretpreceding list of directors, the persons listeldly were executive officers of the Company
or its subsidiary as of December 31, 1998.

Executive Principal

Officer Occupation F or
Name and (Age) Since (1) Past Five Ye ars
Louis G. Morris (44) 1988 Senior Vice President and Treasurer
Old Point Fi nancial Corporation
Cary B. Epes (50) 1993 Senior Vice President
Old Point Fi nancial Corporation
W. Rodney Rosser (58) 1989 Senior Vice President and Secretary
Old Point Fi nancial Corporation
Margaret P. Causby (48) 1992 Senior Vice President
Old Point Fi nancial Corporation

Each of these executive officers owns less tharoflhe stock of the Company.

(1) Cary B. Epes was Vice President and CommeAgiabunt Manager at Crestar Bank. All other exeautificers served in virtually the
same capacity with the Company and/or the Bank poi@appointment as an executive officer.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation
Cash Compensation

The following table presents a three-year summaéafl@ompensation paid or accrued by the Compantiythe Bank to the Company's Chief
Executive Officer and each executive officer whsakary and bonus for 1998 exceeded $100,000.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Annual Compensation

Name
and
Principal All Other
Position Year Salary(l) Bonus( 2) Compensation(3)(4)
Robert F. Shuford 1998 $151,200 $34,56 0 $17,765
Chairman, President 1997 $148,500 $26,00 0 $16,092
& CEO 1996 $147,900 $10,00 0 $10,857
W. Rodney Rosser 1998 $93,267 $21,60 0 $10,099
EVP & Trust Officer 1997 $86,100 $14,40 0 $8,499
& Secretary 1996 $85,500 $ 8,00 0 $6,136
Louis G. Morris 1998 $90,247 $21,60 0 $9,051
EVP/CFO 1997 $83,000 $14,40 0 $7,636
1996 $83,000 $8,00 0 $5,262
Cary B. Epes 1998 $89,167 $21,60 0 $9,440
EVP/CCO 1997 $82,000 $14,40 0 $7,708
1996 $82,000 $7,50 0 $5,359
Margaret P. Causby 1998 $88,167 $21,60 0 $9,035
EVP 1997 $78,483 $14,40 0 $7,372
1996 $73,387 $8,00 0 $4,756

(1) Salary includes directors' fees as follows: Bhuford - 1998, $4,200, 1997, $4,500, and 1998088

(2) Bonus consideration for Mr. Shuford is paidlanuary of each year following the year in whicimed so that year end results could be
evaluated by the Compensation Committee. Bonusideration for Mr. Rosser, Mr. Morris, Mr. Epes a¥ds. Causby is paid in the year in
which earned.
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(3) Mr. Shuford has received other compensaticioléswvs:

1998 1997 1996
Deferred Profit Sharing $ 5,090 $ 4,342 $ 4,395
Cash Profit Sharing 4,811 4,088 0
401(k) Matching Plan 4,410 4,320 4,320
Group Term Insurance 3,454 3,342 2,142

Total $17,765 $16,092 $10,857

(4) Mr. Rosser has received other compensationlsf:

1998 1997 1996
Deferred Profit Sharing $ 3,156 $ 2,532 $ 2,564
Cash Profit Sharing 2,984 2,385 0
401(k) Matching Plan 2,735 2,520 2,510
Group Term Insurance 1,224 1,062 1,062

Total $10,099 $8,499 $6,136

Mr. Morris has received other compensation as ¥aito

1998 1997 1996
Deferred Profit Sharing $ 3,122 $ 2,551 $ 2,533
Cash Profit Sharing 2,951 2,356 0
401(k) Matching Plan 2,705 2,490 2,490
Group Term Insurance 273 239 239

Total $9,051 $7,636 $5,262

Mr. Epes has received other compensation as follows

1998 1997 1996
Deferred Profit Sharing $ 3,087 $ 2,520 $ 2,502
Cash Profit Sharing 2,918 2,328 0
401(k) Matching Plan 2,675 2,460 2,460
Group Term Insurance 760 400 397

Total $9,440 $7,708 $ 5,359

Mrs. Causby has received other compensation asfsil

1998 1997 1996
Deferred Profit Sharing $ 3,053 $ 2,408 $ 2,228
Cash Profit Sharing 2,885 2,224 0
401(k) Matching Plan 2,645 2,350 2,190
Group Term Insurance 452 390 338

Total $9,035 $7,372 $4,756
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial vners and Management
Security ownership of certain beneficial owners arahagement is detailed in Part 111, Item 10. @ #hnnual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns

Some of the Company directors, executive officensl members of their immediate families, and caons, partnerships and other entities
of which such persons are officers, directors, s, trustees, executors or beneficiaries, at@mess of the Bank. As of December 31,
1998, borrowing by all policy making officers anidedtors amounted to $1.8 million. This amount eseinted 4.5% of the total equity capital
accounts of the Company as of December 31, 1998a@1is and commitments to lend included in suahgdactions were made in the ordir
course of business, upon substantially the samesténcluding interest rates and collateral, ase¢harevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with other persons and did not invohage than normal risk of collectibility or presarther unfavorable features. It is the policy
of the Bank to provide loans to officers who ar¢ executive officers and to employees at more fablerrates than those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions with other pers®hgse loans do not involve more than the normklaf collectibility or present other
unfavorable features. The Bank expects to havieariuture similar banking transactions with direstafficers, principal stockholders and
their associates.

The law firm of Cumming, Hatchett and Jordan, B&ves as legal counsel to the Bank. Mr. Eugengdkian is a member of the firm.
During 1998, the firm received from the Bank airegaand fees totaling $76,223. Morgan Marrow Conypaf which John B. Morgan, Il is
President, provided insurance for which the Baril $268,610 during 1998. The 1998 amount paid the$u$218,042 in three year prepaid
premiums for coverage through May 2001. Hamptoti&tary, of which John Cabot Ishon is the ownerjated office furniture and supplies
for which the bank paid $104,216. Geddy, Harris &@y, of which Stephen D. Harris is a partner, fatwick Plumbing & Heating Corp.
of which G. Royden Goodson, Ill is President predgroducts and services to the Bank during 1998.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules @Reports on Form 8
A.1 Financial Statements:
The following audited financial statements areuneld in Part Il, Iltem 8, of this Annual Report aorifs 10-K.

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 1998381 Consolidated Statements of Income Years EBb@éedmber 31, 1998, 1997 and
1996 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stod&lsEquity Years Ended December 31, 1998, 19871886 Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1887896 Notes to Financial Statements Auditor'sdrep

A.2 Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule Location Average Balance Sheets, Netdsiténcome and Rates Part |, Iltem 1

Analysis of Change in Net Interest Income Partl, Item1
Interest Sensitivity Analysis Partl, Item1
Investment Securities Partl, Item1
Investment Security Maturities & Yields Partl, Item1
Loans Partl, Item1
Maturity Schedule of Selected Loans Partl, Item1
Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans Partl, Item1
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses Partl, Item1
Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses Partl, Item1
Deposits Partl, Item1
Certificates of Deposit of $100,000 and more Partl, Item 1
Return on Average Equity Partl, Item1
Short Term Borrowings Partl, Item1
Lease Commitments Partl, Item1
Other Real Estate Owned Partl, Item1
Selected Financial Data Part Il, Item 6
Capital Ratios Part I, Item 7
Dividends Paid and Market Price of Common Stock Part I, Item 7
Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities Part Il, Item 8
Premises and Equipment Part I, I1tem 8
Stock Option Plan Part Il, I1tem 8
Components of Income Tax Expense Part I, Item 8
Reconciliation of Expected and

Reported Income Tax Expense Part I, Item 8
Pension Plan Part I, Item 8
Commitments and Contingencies Part I, Item 8
Fair Value of Financial Instruments Part Il, Item 8
Directors and Executive Officer Part I, Item 10
Executive Compensation Part I, Item 11
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A.3 Exhibits:

3 Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
4 Not Applicable

9 Not Applicable

10 Not Applicable

11 Not Applicable

12 Not Applicable

13 Not Applicable

18 Not Applicable

19 Not Applicable

22 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Not Applicable

24 Consent of Independent Certified Public Accontgta
25 Powers of Attorney

27 Financial Data Schedule

28 Not Applicable

29 Not Applicable

B. Reports on Form 8-K:
No reports on form-K were filed during the fourth quarter of 1998.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on the 26th day of March, 1999.
OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Robert F. Shuford, President

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEtiange Act of 1934, this report has been sigyethd following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in their capacities on the 26thafaylarch, 1999.

/ s/ Robert F. Shuford Presi dent and Director
Robert F. Shuford Princi pal Executive Oficer
/'sl Louis G Morris Seni or Vice President and Treasurer
Louis G Morris Princi pal Financial & Accounting Oficer
/'s/Richard F. Clark * Di rect or
/sl Gertrude S. Dixon * Di rect or
/sl Russell S. Evans, Jr. * Di rect or
/sl G Royden Goodson, |11 Director
/s/Dr. Arthur D. Greene Di rect or
/sl Steven D. Harris * Di rect or
/'s/ John Cabot |shon * Di rect or
/ s/ Eugene M Jordan * Di rector
/s/John B. Morgan * Di rector

/s/Dr. H Robert Schappert * Di rector



EXHIBIT 22. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

The Old Point National Bank of Phoebus, a whollyrew subsidiary of the Corporation, is a nationaldireg association subject to regulation
by the Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal @sfpinsurance Corporation, and the Federal Resgystem.
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EXHIBIT 24. CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

EGGLESTON SMITH P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors
Old Point Financial Corporation

We consent to the incorporation by reference is #nnual Reports on Form 10-K of our report dateauary 15, 1999, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of Old Point Raia Corporation as of December 31, 1998, 199d@,1896, and for each of the three-year
period ended December 31, 1998.

EGGLESTON SMITH P.C.

/'s/ EGGLESTON SM TH P. C.

Newport News, Virginia
March 26, 1999
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EXHIBIT 25. POWERS OF ATTORNEY
Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

I, Russell S. Evans, Jr., do hereby constituteagmbint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordantrugyand lawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me amiohy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to akeany and all instruments as such attorneystomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsifidxchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andrates, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commig$in"Commission") in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembef 838 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplesyatatements, instruments and documents as sochegfs or attorney deem necessary or
appropriate.

| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoraey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.
/sl Russell S. Evans, Jr. (SEAL)
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Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

[, Dr. Richard F. Clark, do hereby constitute apgaint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan,roey @and lawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bnchy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Dr. Richard F. Oark (SEAL)
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Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

I, Gertrude S. Dixon, do hereby constitute and aggeobert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my ancklawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bnchy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Gertrude S. Dixon (SEAL)
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Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

I, Stephen D. Harris, do hereby constitute and eypobert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my ancklawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bmnchy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Stephen D. Harris (SEAL)

59



Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

[, John Cabot Ishon, do hereby constitute and appabert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, myangeelawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bmnchy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl John Cabot |shon (SEAL)
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Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

I, Eugene M. Jordan, do hereby constitute and apiobert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, myangelawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bmnchy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annualprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 328 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as gochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Eugene M Jordan ( SEAL)
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Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

I, Robert F. Shuford, do hereby constitute and apg®obert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, my angklawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bnichy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreeyr attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Robert F. Shuford (SEAL)

62



Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

[, Dr. Arthur D. Greene, do hereby constitute apdaint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan,roy &and lawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bnohy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Dr. Arthur D. Greene (SEAL) 63



Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

[, John B. Morgan, Il, do hereby constitute andappRobert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordan, mg &nd lawful attorney-in-fact, any of
whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me Bnichy name and on my behalf as a director andficesfof Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annuaiprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 338 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreeyr attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl John B. Morgan, |l (SEAL)

64



Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

I, G. Royden Goodson, lll, do hereby constitute appoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordantrogyand lawful attorney-irfact, an
of whom acting singly is hereby authorized for me & my name and on my behalf as a director araffarer of Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneys@maly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annualprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 328 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as dochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl G Royden Goodson, |IlIl (SEAL)
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Old Point Financial Corporation
Power of Attorney

[, Dr. H. Robert Schappert, do hereby constitutd &mpoint Robert F. Shuford and Eugene M. Jordarrue and lawful attorney-in- fact,
any of whom acting singly is hereby authorizedrfag and in my name and on my behalf as a direcioanfficer of Old Point Financial
Corporation (the "Corporation"), to act and to axecany and all instruments as such attorneysomaly deem necessary or advisable to
enable the Corporation to comply with the Secwsiigchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Act"), andratgs, regulations, policies or
requirements of the Securities Exchange Commigsimn"Commission”) in respect thereof in connectioth the preparation and filing by
the Corporation with the Commission of its Annualprt on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembed 328 and any and all amendments
to such Report, together with such other supplematatements, instruments and documents as gochegfs or attorney deem necessary or

appropriate.
| do hereby ratify and confirm all my said attoreey attorney shall do or cause to be done byevinereof.
WITNESS my execution hereof this 12th day of Japua®99.

/sl Dr. H Robert Schappert (SEAL)
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EXHIBIT 3. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS
AMENDED: 04.25.95
(ART. IlI-A - ENTIRETY)
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION
I. Name
The name of the Corporation is Old Point FinancialCorporation.
Il. Purpose

The purpose for which the Corporation is organiseid act as a bank holding company and to traresacand all lawful business, not
required to be specifically stated in the Articbésncorporation, for which corporations may bedarmorated under the Virginia Stock
Corporation Act.

[ll. Capital Stock
A. General Authorization. The Corporation shall @authority to issue 6,000,000 shares of CommockStar value $5.00 per share.
B. No Preemptive Rights. Shareholders shall havereemptive rights to acquire any unissued shéfrégedCorporation.

C. Cumulative Voting. At all elections of directarthe Corporation, each holder of Common StociId¥e entitled to cast as many votes as
shall equal the number of votes which he wouldriéled to cast for the election of directors widspect to his shares of Common Stock
multiplied by the number of directors to be electrud he may cast all such votes for a single @irer may distribute them among as many
candidates as he may see fit.

IV. Certain Business Combinations

A. Higher Vote for Certain Business Combinationse Bffirmative vote of the holders of not less tii&@6 of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock of the Corporation shall be requicedtie approval or authorization of a Business Gaoatinbn (as hereinafter defined). The
foregoing shall not apply to a Business Combinatéomd such Business Combination shall require sath approval as is required by law, if
it shall have been approved by the affirmative \aftat least 80% of the entire Board of Directors.

B. Certain Definitions. For purposes of this AridV:

1.A "Business Combination" shall mean (i) any mexeconsolidation of the Corporation of a subgsigiaith or into, or the exchange of
shares of Common Stock of the Corporation for @agbroperty of, an Acquiring Person, (ii) any sdéase, exchange or other disposition of
all or substantially all of the assets of the Cogpion or a subsidiary to or with an Acquiring Rers(iii) any reclassification of securities
(including any reverse stock split), recapitaliaator other transaction that would have the efféicreasing the voting power of an
Acquiring Person, or (iv) any plan or proposaltiee liquidation or dissolution of the Corporatiomposed by or on behalf of an Acquiring
Person.

2.An "Acquiring Person" shall mean any individuain, corporation, trust or any other entity whigh:beneficially owns, together with its
affiliates and associated persons, 5% or moreeobtiistanding shares of Common Stock of the Cotiporeor (ii) though owning less than
5% of such shares, proposes or undertakes to admainol or exercise a controlling influence ovee Corporation as determined by the B
of Directors.
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C. Amendment or Repeal. The provisions of thisaletshall not be amended or repealed, nor shalpanyision of these Articles of
Incorporation be adopted that is inconsistent Witk Article, unless such action shall have begraped by the affirmative vote of either: (i)
the holders of at least 75% of the outstandingeshaf Common Stock; or (ii) 80% of the entire Boafdirectors and the holders of the
requisite number of shares required under Virdgiawafor the amendment of articles of incorporation.

D. Certain Determinations by the Board of Directdihen evaluating a proposed Business CombinatienBoard of Directors of the
Corporation shall, in connection with the exer@$és judgment in determining what is in the biesérests of the Corporation and its
stockholders, give due consideration not only togoor other consideration being offered, but &tsall other relevant factors, including,
without limitation, (i) the financial and managéniasources and future prospects of the Acquiriagsén, (ii) the possible effects on the
business, employees, customers and creditors @ahgoration and its subsidiaries. In evaluating pmoposed Business Combination, the
Board of Directors shall be deemed to be perforntiwgr duly authorized duties and acting in goathfand in the best interests of the
Corporation and its stockholders.

Any determination made in good faith by the Boar@iwectors, on the basis of information at thediavailable to it, whether

() an individual, firm, corporation or other entis an Acquiring Person, (ii) the number of shase€ommon Stock beneficially owned,
directly or indirectly, by such person is more tf#h of the outstanding shares, or (iii) any indiad] firm, corporation or other entity is an
"affiliate” or "associated person” of an AcquiriRgrson, shall be conclusive and binding for alppses of this Article IV.

V. Directors
The number of directors shall be fixed by the Byda®bsent any Bylaw fixing the number of directahgt number shall be 25.
VI. Indemnification and Limit on Liability

A. To the full extent permitted by the Virginia $toCorporation Act, as it exists on the date hemrohay hereafter be amended, each dir
and officer shall be indemnified by the Corporatégrainst liabilities, fines, penalties and claimposed upon or asserted against him
(including amounts paid in settlement) by reasohaying been such director or officer, whether airthen continuing so to be, and against
all expenses (including counsel fees) reasonalslyried by him in connection therewith, except ilatien to matters as to which he shall h
been finally adjudged liable by reason of his willilnisconduct or a knowing violation of criminaldan the performance of his duty as such
director or officer. The right of indemnificatiorereby provided shall not be exclusive of any otigdrts to which any director may be
entitled.

B. To the full extent that the Virginia Stock Corption Act, as it exists on the date hereof or ineseafter be amended, permits the limitation
or elimination of the liability of directors or afers, a director or officer of the Corporation Ishat be liable to the Corporation or its
stockholders for monetary damages.

C. The Board of Directors is hereby empowered, hyagority vote of a quorum of disinterested direstd@o indemnify or contract in advance
to indemnify any person not specified in subsecfinof this Article against liabilities, fines, palties and claims imposed upon or asserted
against him (including amounts paid in settlemégtjeason of having been an employee, agent outtans of the Corporation, whether or
not then continuing so to be, and against all egperfincluding counsel fees) reasonably incurrelitmyin connection therewith, to the same
extent as if such person were specified as onéhtomindemnification is granted in subsection (adhig Article.
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D. Every reference in this Article to director, ioffr, employee, agent or consultant shall inclugevery director, officer, employee, agent or
consultant of the Corporation or any consultarthefCorporation or any corporation the majorityhef voting stock of which is owned
directly or indirectly by the Corporation, (ii) eyeformer director, officer, employee, agent or saltant of the Corporation, (iii) every person
who may have served at the request of or on behétle Corporation as a director, officer, emplgyagent, consultant or trustee of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust tivas entity, and (iv) in all of such cases, hisaers and administrators.

E. The provisions of this Article VI shall be apgalble from and after its adoption even though sorel of the underlying conduct or events
relating to such a proceeding may have occurredréefuch adoption. No amendment, modification pead of this Article VI shall diminish
the rights provided hereunder to any person arisomg conduct or events occurring before the adwoptif such amendment, modification or
repeal.

F. In the event there has been a change in theasitign of a majority of the Board of Directorsexfthe date of the alleged act or omission
with respect to which indemnification is claimedyaletermination as to indemnification and advare@nof expenses with respect to any
claim for indemnification made pursuant to subsec({iA) of this Article VI shall be made by spediedal counsel agreed upon by the Board
of Directors and the proposed indemnitee are urtakégree upon such special legal counsel, thedBwiairectors and the proposed
indemnitee each shall select a nominee, and théneenshall select such special legal counsel.

08.11.92
BYLAWS

OF
OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORPORATION

ARTICLE I.
STOCKHOLDERS
AMENDED: 08/11/92

1.1 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the stoddkers of the Corporation for the election of dicgs and for the transaction of such
other business authorized or required to be traeddry the stockholders shall be held in Hamptargikia, at the main office of the Old
Point National Bank, or at any other convenientglauthorized by the Board of Directors, on thetfouesday in April of each year, but if
no election of directors is held on that day, ityrbea held on a subsequent date designated by theel B Directors or stockholders in
accordance with law.

1.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the $tolclers for any purpose or purposes shall be hbkhever called by the Chairman of the
Board, or by the President if there is no Chairmoftine Board, or by the Board of Directors or bg tiolders of not less than one-tenth of all
the shares entitled to vote at the meeting.

1.3 Notice of Meetings. Notice of the annual or apgcial meeting shall be mailed at least ten days,not more than fifty days, prior to the
date of the meeting to each registered stockheaitlBis address as the same appears on the botiles @brporation. If the meeting shall be
called to act on an amendment to the Articles obtporation or on a plan of merger, consolidatioexxhange, or on a reduction of stated
capital, or upon a proposed sale of all or subistynall of the assets of the Corporation, notsitall be given not less than twenty-five nor
more than fifty days before the date of the meetimgl such notice shall be accompanied by a coflyegfroposed amendment or plan of
merger, consolidation, or exchange, or the proppsufor reduction of capital.
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1.4 Quorum. At any meeting of the stockholdersitbielers of a majority of the shares issued andaudisng, having voting power (which
shall not include any treasury stock held by thepBmtion), being present in person or represelyaoioxy, shall be a quorum for all
purposes, including the election of directors.

1.5 Voting. At all meetings of the stockholderscétholders shall be entitled to vote, either insparor by proxy duly appointed by an
instrument in writing, subscribed by such stockleoldr by his authorized attorney; at all meetingshsstockholder shall have one vote for
each share of stock entitled under the provisidriiBeocharter to voting rights which may be registein his name upon the books of the
Corporation on the day preceding that on whichttiesfer books may be closed by order of the Boai@irectors. Treasury stock held by
Corporation shall not be entitled to vote.

ARTICLE II
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1 Number. The business and affairs of the Cotmorahall be managed and controlled by a Boafdidctors which shall consist of not
less than five nor more than twenty-five sharehdiéhne exact number within such minimum and maxinimits to be fixed and determined
from time to time by the Board of Directors or lasolution of the shareholders at any meeting ttiefedirector may be removed at any time
with or without cause by a vote of the stockholders

2.2 Term of Office. Each director shall serve foe term of one year and until his successor slaak been duly chosen and qualified.

2.3 Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the BodrDicectors, including a vacancy resulting fromiaorease of not more than two in
number of directors, may be filled by the affirrvativote of a majority of the remaining directoreugh less than a quorum of the Board of
Directors.

2.4 Stockholder Nominations of Directors. Subjecthte rights of holders of any class or seriedadlshaving a preference over the Common
Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation, nomioasi for the election of Directors shall be madéheyBoard of Directors or a committee
appointed by the Board of Directors or by any stat#ler entitled to vote in the election of Directgenerally. However, any stockholder
entitled to vote in the election of Directors geallgrmay nominate one or more persons for elead®Directors at a meeting only if written
notice of such stockholder's intent to make suahination or nominations has been given, eitherdrg@nal delivery or by United States
mail, postage prepaid, to the President of the @atjpn not less than 14 days nor more than 50 mlegdvance of such meeting, provided,
however, that if less than 21 days' notice of tleetimg is given to stockholders, such nominaticaildfe mailed or delivered to the President
of the Holding Company not later than the closeudiness on the seventh day following the day oiclwthe notice of the meeting was
mailed. Each such notice shall set forth (a) theenand address of the stockholder who intends teni® nomination and of the person or
persons to be nominated; (b) a representatiortiibagtockholder is a holder of record of stockhaf Corporation entitled to vote at such
meeting and intends to appear in person or by pabxige meeting to nominate the person or pergoesified in the notice; (¢) a description
of all arrangements or understandings betweenttiv&fsolder and each nominee and any other persparsons (naming such person or
persons) pursuant to which the nomination or notigna are to be made by the stockholder;

(d) the principal occupation of each nominee; (@)tbtal number of shares that to the knowledgbehotifying stockholder will be voted f
each of the nominees; and (f) the consent of eantinee to serve as a Director of the Corporati@oiélected. The Chairman of the meeting
may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of angg®not made in compliance with the foregoing pdoce.
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ARTICLE Il
DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

3.1 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Boafirectors shall be held annually, immediatefdwing each annual meeting of
stockholders, for the purpose of electing officamsl carrying on such other business as may propere before such meeting, and, if
necessary, immediately following each special nmgedif stockholders to consider and act upon anyemathich may properly come before
such meeting. Any such meeting shall be held apkaee where the stockholders' meeting was held.Bdard of Directors may also adopt a
schedule of additional meetings which shall be itared regular meetings, and such meetings shdiélikat the time and place, within or
without the Commonwealth of Virginia, as the Chairmor, in his absence, the President shall designat

3.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Bo&mirectors shall be held on the call of the Chmain, the President, any three membel
the Board of Directors or a majority of the Boafdirectors at the principal office of the Corpadeait or at such other place as shall be
designated.

3.3 Telephone Meetings. The Board of Directors payicipate in a meeting by means of conferen@ptedne or similar communications
equipment whereby all persons participating inrtleeting can hear each other, and participatiorublg smeans shall constitute presence in
person at such meeting. When such a meeting isuctedi by means of conference telephone or similameunications equipment, a written
record shall be made of the action taken at suctinge

3.4 Notice of Meetings. No notice need be giveregiular meetings of the Board of Directors.

Notice of special meetings of the Board of Direstshall be mailed to each director at least th3geldys, or telegraphed at least two (2) ¢
prior to the date of the meeting and must set fitméhpurpose for which the meeting is called.

3.5 Quorum; Required Vote. A majority of the dik@st shall constitute a quorum for the transactiolbusiness by the Board of Directors.
act of the majority of the directors present ateeting at which a quorum is present shall be thefatie Board of Directors unless the act of
a greater number is required by law or these Bylaws

3.6 Waiver of Notice. Notwithstanding any otheryisions of law, the Articles of Incorporation oetfe Bylaws, whenever notice of any
meeting for any purpose is required to be giveany director a waiver thereof in writing, signedthg person entitled to said notice, whether
before or after the time stated therein, shalheeequivalent to the giving of such notice.

A director who attends a meeting shall be deemdthte had timely and proper notice of the meetimgss he attends for the express pur
of objecting to the transaction of any businessabse the meeting is not lawfully called or convened

3.7 Actions by Directors Without Meeting. Any acticequired to be taken at a meeting of the dirsctmrany action which may be taken at a
meeting of the directors, may be taken without &ting if a consent in writing, setting forth thetian, shall be signed either before or after
such action by all of the directors. Such conshatl iave the same force and effect as a unanivmies
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ARTICLE IV
COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS

4.1 Executive Committee. The Board of Directorsrésolution adopted by a majority of the numbedicéctors fixed by these Bylaws, may
designate four or more directors to constitute aecHtive Committee. A majority of the members &f Bxecutive Committee shall constitute
a quorum. The Executive Committee shall meet orcétieof any of its members. Notice of any such timgeshall be given by mail,
telephone, telegraph or other means by the clobesihess on the day before such meeting is telik The Executive Committee shall have
and may exercise all of the authority of the Boafr@®irectors except to approve (i) an amendmerthefArticles of Incorporation; (ii) a plan
of merger or consolidation;

(iii) a plan of exchange under which the Corponaticould be acquired; (iv) the sale, lease or exghaaor the mortgage or pledge for a
consideration other than money, of all, or sub&éintall, the property and assets of the Corporatitherwise than in the usual and regular
course of its business; (v) the voluntary dissoluf the Corporation; (vi) revocation of voluntatigsolution proceedings;

(vii) any employee benefit plan involving the iseaa of common stock; (viii) the compensation paid tmember of the Executive
Committee; or (ix) an amendment of these Bylaws.

4.2 Audit Committee. The Board of Directors may @ippan Audit Committee consisting of not less thianree directors, none of whom shall
be officers, which Committee shall regularly revithe adequacy of internal financial controls, rewigith the Corporation's independent
public accountants the annual audit and other &iiguistatements, and recommend the selection dEtnporation's independent public
accountants.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors ofef@Id Point National Bank may also serve as theitACommittee for the Board of
Directors of the Corporation.

4.3 Other Committees. The Board of Directors magigteate such other committees with limited autlyca# it may deem advisable.

4.4 Telephone Meetings. Committees may particijpateeetings by means of conference telephone dlasiodommunications equipment
whereby all persons participating in the meeting le@ar each other, and participation by such mslaailé constitute presence in person at
such meeting. When such meeting is conducted byisnafaa conference telephone or similar commurdoatequipment, a written record
shall be made of the action taken at such meeting.

4.5 Actions by Committees Without Meetings. Anyiactwhich may be taken at a committee meeting, betaken without a meeting if a
consent in writing, setting forth the action, shadlsigned either before or after such action bgfahe members of the committee. Such
consent shall have the same force and effect asammous vote.

4.6 Committee Rules. Unless the Board of Direcbdinerwise provides, each committee designateddytard of Directors may adopt,
amend and repeal rules for the conduct of its lssinin the absence of direction by the Board oéd@rs or a provision in the rules of such
committee to the contrary, a majority of the enéirghorized number of members of such committe# sbiastitute a quorum for the
transaction of business, the vote of a majoritthefmembers present at a meeting at the time ofwote if a quorum is then present shall be
the act of such committee. Except to the exterittttese Bylaws contain provisions to the contrangther respects each committee shall
conduct its business in the same manner as thel®bd&irectors is required to conduct its business.
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ARTICLE V
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

5.1 Chairman of the Board. The Board of Directoeg/rappoint one of its members to be Chairman oBiberd to serve at the pleasure of the
Board. He shall preside at all meetings of the BadmDirectors. The Chairman of the Board shallesujse the carrying out of the policies
adopted or approved by the Board. He shall havergéexecutive powers, as well as the specific pswenferred by these Bylaws. He shall
also have and may exercise such further powerslatigls as from time to time may be conferred upoassigned to him by the Board of
Directors.

5.2 President. The Board of Directors shall appoirég of its members to be President of the Corfmoraln the absence of the Chairman, he
shall preside at any meeting of the Board. Thei@ees shall have general executive powers and baalt and may exercise any and all other
powers and duties pertaining by law, regulatiomraictice, to the Office of President or imposedh®se Bylaws. He shall also have and |
exercise such further powers and duties as frora tortime may be conferred upon or assigned tolyiihe Board of Directors.

5.3 Vice President. The Board of Directors may amipane or more Vice Presidents. Each Vice Presideall have such powers and dutie
may be assigned to him by the Board of Directorse @Wice President shall be designated by the BoBRrectors, in the absence of the
President, to perform all the duties of the Pradide

5.4 Secretary. The Board of Directors shall appaiBecretary or other designated officer who di@Becretary of the Board and of the
Corporation, and shall keep accurate minutes aha#tings. He shall attend to the giving of allices required by these Bylaws to be given.
He shall be custodian of the corporate seal, recaocuments and papers of the Corporation. Hé gtmadide for the keeping of proper
records of all transactions of the Corporation.sHall have and may exercise any and all other poeed duties pertaining by law, regulation
or practice, to the Office of Secretary or impobgdhese Bylaws. He shall also perform such otluied as may be assigned to him, from
time to time, by the Board of Directors.

5.5 Other Officers. The Board of Directors may d@ppsuch other officers as from time to time mapegr to the Board of Directors to be
required or desirable to transact the businesseo€Corporation. Such officers shall respectivelgreise such powers and perform such duties
as to pertain to their several offices, or as magdnferred upon, or assigned to, them by the BoBRirectors, the Chairman of the Board
the President.

5.6 Clerks and Agents. The Board of Directors mayoént, from time to time, such clerks, agents angloyees as it may deem advisable
the prompt and orderly transaction of the busiméske Corporation, define their duties, fix théasis to be paid to them and dismiss them.
Subject to the authority of the Board of Directdhg President, or any other officer of the Corfioreauthorized by him, may appoint and
dismiss all or any clerks, agents and employeegeggtribe their duties and the conditions of teeiployment, and from time to time fix
their compensation.

5.7 Tenure of Office. The President shall holddifgce for the current year for which the Boardwdfich he shall be a member was elected,
unless he shall resign, become disqualified, ameb®oved; and any vacancy occurring in the OfficB@fsident shall be filled promptly by the
Board of Directors.
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ARTICLE VI
CERTIFICATES OF STOCK

6.1 Form and Issuance. Certificates of stock dielh such form as may be approved by the BoaRirettors and shall be signed by the
President or any Vice President and the Secretaay d\ssistant Secretary or the Treasurer or ars&sg Treasurer, and may (but need not)
be sealed with the seal of Corporation or a fadsithiereof. Any such signature may be a facsimile.

6.2 Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificatessuhnces of New Certificates. The Corporation rasiyd a new certificate of stock in the
place of any certificate theretofore issued bglieged to have been lost, stolen or destroyedif@€orporation may require the owner of
lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, or his legpresentative, to give the Corporation a bonficsent to indemnify it against any claim that
may be made against it on account of the allegesl kheft or destruction of any such certificatéherissuance of such new certificate.

6.3 Transfer. The Board of Directors shall have @oand authority to make all such rules and regratas they may deem expedient
concerning the issue, registration and transfeedificates of stock and may appoint transfer &genclerks and registrars thereof. Unless
otherwise provided, transfers of shares of stocthbyCorporation shall be made upon its books Iosesder of the certificates for the shares
transferred accompanied by an assignment in writinthe holder and may be accomplished either &yntiider in person or by a duly
authorized attorney-in-fact.

6.4 Recognition of Other Stock Certificates. Thef@oation will recognize as its own common stocKifieates those stock certificates
representing shares of common stock of The OldtPational Bank of Phoebus, which certificates hawebeen heretofore exchanged for
certificates representing shares of common sto¢keoCorporation.

ARTICLE VII
AMENDMENTS

7.1 New Bylaws and Alterations. These Bylaws mawimended or repealed and new Bylaws may be maateyaegular or special meeting
of the Board of Directors by the vote of a majothigreof. However, Bylaws made by the Board of Elves may be repealed or changed and
new Bylaws may be made by the stockholders andttiekholders may prescribe that any Bylaw madébyntshall not be altered, amended
or repealed by the directors.

ARTICLE VIII
CORPORATE SEAL

8.1 The President, any Vice President, the Segretaainy Assistant Secretary, or other officer ¢lueto designated by the Board of Direct
shall have the authority to affix the corporatel $e@any document requiring such seal, and to &tiessame. Such seal shall be substantially
in the following form:

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
9.1 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporasball be the calendar year.

9.2 Execution of Instruments. All agreements, inde2s, mortgages, deeds, conveyances, transfetificages, declarations, receipts,
discharges, releases, satisfactions, settlemestiipps, schedules, accounts, affidavits, bonddguakings, proxies and other instruments or
documents may be signed, executed, acknowledgetiededelivered or accepted in behalf of the Gogtion by the Chairman of the Board,
or the President, or any Vice President, or theeday. Any such instruments may also be execuatekhowledged, verified, delivered or
accepted in behalf of the Corporation in such otheanner and by such other officers as the Boamireictors may from time to time direct.
The provisions of this Section 9.2 are supplemegrttaany other provision of these Bylaws.
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9.3 Records. The Articles of Incorporation, thed@y$ and the proceedings of all meetings of theettudalers, the Board of Directors,
standing committees of the Board, shall be recondegbpropriate minute books provided for the pggdrhe minutes of each meeting shall
be signed by the Secretary or other officer appdind act as Secretary of the meeting.

ARTICLE X
EMERGENCY BYLAWS
10.1 Effect.

The provision of this Article X shall be effectidairing any emergency resulting from an attack enUhited States or any nuclear or atomic
disaster (hereinafter called an "Emergency").

10.2 Board of Directors.

During an emergency, the director or directorstiaralance at the meeting shall constitute a quoAumeeting of the Board of Directors may
be called by any director or officer of the Corgama. Notice of any meeting during an emergency tmagiven only to such of the directors
as it may be feasible to reach at the time andubls sneans as may be feasible at the time, inclyplifidjcation or radio. If no director is
present, the three most senior officers of the G@rjion, as hereinafter defined, present shalldssebd directors for the purpose of such
meeting and shall have all of the authority of Bmard of Directors. As used in this Article, offiseshall take seniority as follows:

President

Executive Vice President (if the Board of Directbes elected such

an officer)

Senior Vice President (if the Board of Directors has elected such
an officer)

First Vice President (if the Board of Directors has elected

such an officer)
Vice President  (if the Board of Directors has elected such an

officer)

Treasurer
Assistant Vice President (if the Board of Directbes elected such

an officer)

Assistant Treasurer  (if the Board of Directors has elected such
an officer)

Secretary
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Within each officer class, officers shall take seity on the basis of length of service in suchoaffor, in the event of equality, length of
service as an officer of the Corporation.

10.3 Executive Authority.

The Board of Directors shall provide lines of sigsien of executive authority which, until alteredthe Board of Directors either before or
during an emergency, shall be effective duringraergency.

10.4 Operations.

It shall be the duty of the senior officer presatn¢ach office of the Corporation during an emecgawhen communication with the President
is impractical, and he is hereby authorized, t@ talich action as he shall think necessary or dsita protect the assets of the Corporation
and provide service to its customers.

10.5 Indemnity.
No officer, director or employee acting in accorckamith this Article shall be liable except for iftil misconduct.
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ARTICLE 9
MULTIPLIER: 100C

PERIOD TYPE YEAR
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 199
PERIOD END DEC 31 199
CASH 10,31:
INT BEARING DEPOSITS 111
FED FUNDS SOLLC 6,57¢
TRADING ASSETS 0
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR SALE 82,56¢
INVESTMENTS CARRYING 54,91¢
INVESTMENTS MARKET 55,42«
LOANS 235,86!
ALLOWANCE 2,85¢
TOTAL ASSETS 404,11¢
DEPOSITS 343,41
SHORT TERM 33z
LIABILITIES OTHER 1,21¢
LONG TERM 15
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0
PREFERREL 0
COMMON 12,87
OTHER SE 26,30¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 404,11¢
INTEREST LOAN 20,19(
INTEREST INVEST 7,045
INTEREST OTHER 572
INTEREST TOTAL 27,80¢
INTEREST DEPOSIT 11,59
INTEREST EXPENSE 12,70(
INTEREST INCOME NET 15,10¢
LOAN LOSSES 65C
SECURITIES GAINS 0
EXPENSE OTHEF 13,19:
INCOME PRETAX 6,17:
INCOME PRE EXTRAORDINARY 6,17:
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 4,63¢
EPS PRIMARY 1.8C
EPS DILUTED 1.7¢
YIELD ACTUAL 4.4¢
LOANS NON 253
LOANS PAST 641
LOANS TROUBLED 0
LOANS PROBLEM 1,20(
ALLOWANCE OPEN 2,671
CHARGE OFF< 947
RECOVERIES 481
ALLOWANCE CLOSE 2,85¢
ALLOWANCE DOMESTIC 0
ALLOWANCE FOREIGN 0
ALLOWANCE UNALLOCATED 1,60¢
End of Filing
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